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Kansas City, Missouri
SCHOOL DISTRICT

At the heart of success.

October 21, 20609

Board of Directors and Citizens of the District
School District of Kansas City, Missouri

1211 McGee Street

Kansas City, MO 64106

The Board of Directors and Citizens:

Missouri revised statute section 165.111 requires an audit to be performed at least biennially of the
financial records of all funds of the District. In compliance with this statute, the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) of the School District of Kansas City, Missouri (the District) for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2009, will be submitied to the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education. In
addition, this report provides the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE), citizens,
financial institutions, grantor agencies, and other interested parties with reliable information concerning
the financial condition of the District.

This letter of transmittal is designed to be read in conjunction with the Management Discussion and
Analysis report. Financial highlights and a discussion of the District’s financial condition are provided in
the Management Discussion and Analysis report. This report is located in the financial section afier the
independent auditors report and provides an overview of the District’s financial condition at the district-
wide level and at the fund level. The district-wide level reports on changes in assets and liabilities or net
assets. The fund level reports providea more detailed focus on all the funds of the District and
demonstrative compliance with Missouri statutes.

District management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls designed to ensure
that District resources are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting
data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: 1) the cost of a control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and, 2) the valuation of cost and benefits requires
estimates by management. This report was prepared by the Business & Finance Division who is
responsible for the accuracy of the data, completeness and fairness of the presentation including all
disclosures. There were no financial policies that had a significant impact on current fiscal year’s
financial statements.

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP, certified public accountants, have issued an unqualified opinion on the
District’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2009. The independent auditor’s report is
located in the front of the financial section of this report.

1211 McGee - Kansas City, MO 64106 - 816.418.7000 - Fax:816.418.7631 - www.kcmsd.klZ.mo.us



The District is also required to have performed annually an audit in compliance with the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133 and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, DESE
requires an audit of certain requirements applicable to the Adult Education and Literacy Program and
specific requirements of Missouri law. Welch & Associates, LLP, certified public accountanis,
performed these audits. Information related to these audits, which includes the schedule of expenditures
of federal awards and related notes, the schedule of findings and questioned costs, and the independent
auditors” reports on compliance and internal control over financial reporting, schedule of selected
statistics and a schedule of transportation cost eligible for state aid are published under a separate cover.

DISTRICT PROFILE

Kansas City, Missouri is the central city of a growing bi-state metropolitan area with a population of
approximately 1.6 million people. The bi-state area consists of 144 municipalities and approximately
4,800 square miles in seven counties of Northwest Missouri and four counties in Northeast Kansas. The
District is located within the taxing jurisdiction of Jackson County with a population of approximately
239,451 people. The District covers about 68 square miles within the corporate limits of Kansas City.

The District was originally established in 1867 and currently exists as an urban school district organized
and governed by Section 162.461 of the Missouri revised statutes. The District is a political subdivision
of the State of Missouri and is governed by an elected nine-member Board of Directors. These financial
statements include the District and a component unit described below (See note 1 (a)):

e School District of Kansas City, Missouri Building Corporation — provide financing of
capital projects and management of related debt service.

The District operates 9 high schools, 6 middle schools, 1 vocational school, 4 alternative schools, 3 early
childhood centers and 41 elementary schools. At all levels, there are comprehensive community and
magnet school curriculums. Among the magnet theme curriculums are visual and performing arts, college
preparatory, foreign languages, and Montessori. The District serves about 20,300 students (includes pre-
kindergarten) and employs over 3,900 principals, teachers, and other support staff.

The Board is required to adopt balanced budgets by the end of each fiscal year in compliance with section
67.010 of the Missouri statute. The budgets serve as a financial plan supporting all educational programs.
A preliminary budget is required to be presented to the Board on or before April 1, unless this deadline is
modified by the Superintendent with the consent of the Board. Budget holders are requested to identify
requirements and needs for their schools/departments. This information is summarized by cost center by
the Budget & Fiscal Planning Department and presented to the Superintendent for review.
Recommendations from the Superintendent are summarized and presented to the Board for review. The
Board is required to conduct at least one public hearing regarding the budget and taxation rate. The
budgets are prepared on a modified accrual basis of accounting using a statutory fund structure (i.e.,
general fund, teacher’s fund). The District is required to disclose estimated revenue by fund and source
and proposed expenditures by fund, activity and object. Therefore, the legal level of budgetary control for
proposed expenditures is at the fund, activity and object level.

ECONOMIC FACTORS

Local property taxes represent approximately 47.4% of total revenues received by the District. During the
fiscal year, the District was entitled to receive approximately $149.1 million in property taxes for tax year
2008 based on its $4.95 levy which was a 6.4% decrease in property tax revenue when compared to tax
year 2007. The decrease in property tax revenue was attributed by a decrease of $275.1 million in
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property assessed valuation primarily cause by the annexation of school sites located in Independence,
Missouri and Sugar Creek, Missouri. Actual current taxes collected during the fiscal year totaled to
$136.3 million. The difference between billed and collected is the county retention fee and delinquent
taxes. Property tax abatement and tax increment financing limit the District's ability to receive significant
increases in property taxes that would be generated as a result of economic growth.

Revenues derived from State sources represent approximately 25.7% of total revenues received by the
District. The District received approximately $81 million for state aid, a decrease of $20.7 million or
20.3%. Beginning with fiscal vear 2007, DESE implemented a new foundation formula that is based on
current expenditures of the school districts meeting all performance standards established by the State
Board of Education. The based target funding level is $6,117 per weighted average daily attendance. This
amount is adjusted by a dollar value modifier and the school districts local effort. Under the new formula,
the District will receive state aid at least equal to the amount it received for fiscal year 2006. Economic
factors that influence the foundation formula are gaming revenue, level of State appropriation,
reassessments submitted by the County Assessor, growth (i.e., average daily attendance), and the local

property tax levy.

Revenues from federal grants represent about 15% of the revenue received by the District. The major
federal grant programs are Title I, T1, ITI, & TV, Head Start, Exceptional Education, School Improvement
and Medicaid. Factors that impact the amount of federal funds the District is entitled to receive include
free and reduced lunch counts and enrollment for exceptional education students. For the current year,
free and reduced lunch counts declined by 3,317 or 18.7% and exceptional education enrollment declined
by 566 or 21.9% when compared to the prior year.

The graph below shows the four major sources of revenue:

2009 Revenue {expressed in thousands)

& Federal
549
15.4%

| County
54
1.39

® Local
® Q;;ﬁ; S182
57.6%

S0
25.7%
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CASH MANAGEMENT

The District’s investment policy is to minimize credit and market risk while maintaining a competitive
yield on its portfolio. Accordingly, deposits were either insured by federal depository insurance or
collateralized. All collateral for bank deposits are held by the Federal Reserve in the depositor’s name on
behalf of the District. Investments in repurchase agreements, certificates of deposit and other federal
obligations had an average vield of 1.5% at vear end. Approximately $4.5 million in interest income was
earned during the fiscal year.

An independent trustee, Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, manages the investment portfolio of
the Building Corporation. Investments of approximately $12 million, of which $10 million is invested in
long-term contract, were held by the trustee as of June 30, 2009. The average yield on these investments
at year end was 2.8%.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Resources are accumulated in an Internal Service Fund for workers compensation and unemployment
self-insurance programs. The District’s workers compensation self-insured program ended in November
1999. The District had approximately $282.000 set aside to cover the cost of these claims, Commercial
insurances policies were purchased to cover current and future claims relating to workers compensation
and other risks of loss. The District continues to participate in the State Employment Security Program
as it relates to unemployment claims. Since substantially all of the outstanding workers compensation
claims under the self-insured program have been settled, the surplus funds were transferred to the General
Fund at June 30, 2009.
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Mission and Vision of the District

Mission

The mission of the Kansas City, Missouri School District (KCMSD) is to achieve, in a way that is
unencumbered by excuses, our vision for education by ensuring that all children benefit from
teaching and learning. The school district will do this through:

e Inquiry-based instruction that involves active-learning, and is project-oriented, collaborative,
student-centered, and facilitated by meaningful professional development

e Successful instructional settings where teachers continually coach each child to develop deep
understanding and educational proficiency, while meeting all Adequate Yearly Progress goals

e Cooperative planning among principals and teachers to ensure attainment of district goals
e Substantial autonomy to each learning community

e Accountability for executing and achieving the school district’s vision, goals, and objectives
articulated in the Accountability Plan

Vision

The Kansas City, Missouri School District envisions its schools as places where every student will
develop deep understanding of the knowledge and skills necessary to pursue higher education,
obtain family-supporting employment, contribute to the civic well-being of the community, and
have the opportunity for a rewarding and fulfilling life.
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McGladrey & Pullen

Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
The School District of Kansas City, Missouri
Kansas City, Missouri

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of The School District of Kansas City, Missouri (the
District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the District's
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of The School District of Kansas City, Missouri, as of June 30, 2009, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 12, 2009 on our
consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered
in assessing the results of our audit.

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP is a member firm of RSM International -
an affiliation of separate and independent legal entities.



The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 17, and the Budgetary Comparison Information on
pages 55 through 65 and Schedule of Funding Progress of the Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan on page 66 are
not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the District’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and other
schedules, listed in the table of contents as supplementary information, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The accompanying introductory and statistical sections, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. This information has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we

express no opinion on them,
/%% / /Zz/éf&,{/ P

Kansas City, Missouri
October 12, 2009



THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2009

The Business and Finance Division of the School District of Kansas City, Missouri (the District) is pleased to
provide the readers of the District’s comprehensive annual financial report this narrative overview and analysis
of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. We encourage readers to consider the
information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of
transmittal.

Financial Highlights

In the statement of net assets for governmental activities, the District’s assets exceeded its liabilities at the close
of the fiscal year by $498.2 million. Net assets are reported in three components as shown in the graph below:

Governmental Net Assets (expressed in thousands)

B Unrestricted
Net Assets,

$114,368,

23.0%

B Restricted Net
Assets,
$12,489, 2.5%

Capital Assets
Net of Related
debt, $371,354,
74.5%

The most significant change in total net assets was a decrease in restricted net asset of approximately $48
million. During the fiscal year, $30 million held by the Trustee, Bank of New York Mellon, was transferred to
the capital projects fund. In addition, proceeds from the sale of buildings were used to defease a portion of the
leaschold revenue bonds.



THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2009

The graph below shows the changes in net assets and indicates that our overall financial position declined in
fiscal year 2009 by 5.8% when compared to fiscal year 2008. This decrease was primarily due to a $55.7 million
(or 8.1%) decrease in total assets and a $25.3 million (or 15.6%) decrease in total liabilitics. The ratio of
expenses to revenues is 91.5%, which indicates on a District-wide basis, there was an 8.5% shortfall in revenue
to cover current year costs.

Changes in Governmental Net Assets

in (000)
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Fiscal Year

2004

2005

2006

2007
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Amount (in millions)

$601,323

$594,174

$588,356

$571,237

$528,650

$498,211

The District’s governmental funds (summarized in Table 1 below) reported an ending total fund balance of
$131.2 million, a decrease of $36.5 million in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 34.1% of this
amount, $44.7 million, is available for spending at the District’s discretion (unreserved/undesignated fund

balance).

Table 1—Summary of Governmental Fund Balances

Unreserved/
Percentage Percentage Increase und esignated
FY09 of total FY 08 of total (dearease) portion

General $ 47,295,859 360% $ 44,876,850 268% $ 2,419,009 $ 37,701,384
Otherspecial revenue 21,137,645 16.1 % 21,813,740 13.0% (676 095) —
Debt service 11,967,633 9.1% 60,171,002 359% (48 203 369) —
Cap ttal projeds 50,548,010 38.5% 39,921,608 23.8% 10,626,402 6,963,959
Nonmajo rfund s 252,748 0.2 % 875,574 0.5% (622 .826) 13,264

$ 131,201,895 1000% $ 167,658,774 100.0% $ (36,456 879)

S _44.678607_



THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2009

Unreserved undesignated fund balance for the General Fund was $37.7 million and represents 14.9% of total
General Fund expenditures and transfers. Reserved fund balance in the General Fund for encumbrances and
inventory was $1.6 million, a decrease of $3.7 million when compared to the prior year. Overall, governmental
fund balances declined at June 30 because of deficit spending in the Other Special Revenue, Debt Service and
Nonmajor Governmental Funds.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial statements.
The District’s basic financial statements consist of three components: (1) government-wide financial statements,
(2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements in order to provide details on certain
funds that may be combined in the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements—The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets represents information on all the District’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating. See Table 2—Net Assets.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the District’s net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event causing the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement
for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods, such as uncollected property taxes and
carned but unused sick and vacation leave.

Government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the District that are principally supported by
property taxes and State funding (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or
a significant portion of their costs through user fees and reimbursements (business-type activities). See
Table 3A—Changes in Net Assets—Governmental Activities.

The business-type activities of the District include a Community Service Fund used to account for the activities
related to the community use of facilities, and student tutoring provided under the Supplementary Educational
Services program. See Table 3B—Changes in Net Assets—Business-Type Activities.

Fund financial statements—A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain internal control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the District can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.



THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2009

Governmental funds—Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating the District’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. As a result, readers of these statements may
better understand the long-term impact of the District’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The District maintains nine individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balances for the major funds. The major funds are: General Fund, Teachers’ Fund, Other Special
Revenue Fund, Debt Service Fund, and the Capital Projects Fund. Data for the other four governmental funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental
funds are provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund, Teachers” Fund, a portion of its capital
project, Child Nutritional Services fund and Administrative Service Center Fund. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for these funds, except for the Administrative Service Fund, to demonstrate
compliance with statutory requirements.

Proprietary funds—The District maintains two types of proprictary funds. First, enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
District uses an enterprise fund to account for the activity recorded in its Community Service Fund. Second,
internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate cost internally among the
District’s various functions. Internal service funds account for activity related to printing/duplicating and
distribution services and risk management programs. Because both of these services predominantly benefit
governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Community Service
Fund, which is a nonmajor fund of the District. Both internal service funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service
funds are provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Fiduciary funds—Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
District. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of
those funds are not available to support the District’s K-12 educational programs. The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The District’s fiduciary fund consists of the Student
Scholarship Fund.



THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2009

Notes to the basic financial statements—The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information—In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the District’s budgeted major funds.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental and internal service
funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As discussed earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the District’s financial position. Table
2—Net Assets shows a summary of the District’s assets and liabilities compared to the prior year.

Table 2—Net Assets (Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental activities Business-type activities
Increase Increase Total
2009 2008 (decrease) 2009 2008 (decrease) 2009 2008
Assets:
Current and other assets  $ 218,295 269,945 (51.650) 522 1426 (904) 218,817 271,371
Capital assets 416,625 420,691 (4,066) — — — 416,625 420,691
Total assets 634,920 690,636 (55.716) 522 1.426 (904) 635,442 692,062
Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities 67,665 90,137 (22.472) — — — 67.665 90,137
Other liabilities 69,044 71,849 (2.,805) — — — 69,044 71,849
Total liabilities 136,709 161,986 (25.277) — — — 136,709 161,986
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of — — —
related debt 371,354 351,989 19,365 371.354 351,989
Restricted 12,489 60,705 (48.216) — — — 12.489 60,705
Unrestricted 114,368 115,956 (1,588) 522 1,426 (904) 114,890 117,382
Total net assets $ 498,211 528.650 (30.439) 522 1.426 904 498,733 530,076

Cash and investments decreased by $45.2 million or 20.3%, caused by deficit spending in the Other Special
Revenue, Debt Service and the Child Nutritional Services funds. In the Debt Service Fund, $30 million held by
the Trustee was transferred to the Capital Projects Fund. The transfer provided a source of funding for
improvements to buildings and funding for the technology plan. Overall, current assets decreased by 8.2%.
Improvements to land, buildings and other than building were $10.2 million; purchases of equipment, furniture,
and vehicles (primarily computers and vehicles) were $.7 million, less depreciation of $15.9 million and
retirements of $5.6 million, resulting in a 1% decrease in capital assets.  The overall change in long-term
liabilitics was a 24.9% reduction. The bonds payable balance declined by $22.8 million, which includes $12.9
million advance refund to an escrow agent, for principal payment on revenue bonds. Compensated absences
increased by $1.1 million.



THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2009

Unrestricted net assets of $114.4 million include management designations and unreserved fund balances of
$102.1 million. The board of directors has authorized management to designate funds for certain obligations that
make up 11.5% of the total net assets included in unrestricted net assets. These fund balance designations are
summarized below:

Management designations for:

Long-term building maintenance $ 11,298,532
CIP Escrow 12,599,545
Technology plan 2,783,551
E-rate/E-rate support 1,848,494
Contingency 5,000,000
Grant Activity 2,741,641
Compensated absences 21,137,645

$ 57,409,408

Fund balance reserved for encumbrances, inventory, workers compensation, and capital assets declared surplus
was approximately $16.9 million. The difference of $(4.6) million represents certain accruals that will impact
future cash flows.

The changes in net assets for the business-type activities primarily relates to the District’s tutoring program and
community use of facilities reported in the Community Service Fund. The District was eligible to serve as a
vendor under the Title I tutoring program. The cost of this service and the reimbursements was accounted for in
the Community Service Fund.

Table 3A—Changes in Net Assets—Governmental Activities highlights the District’s revenues and expenses for
the 2009 and 2008 fiscal years. The difference between revenues and expenses equals the change in net assets.
Revenue is divided into two major components, program revenue and general revenue. Program revenue is
defined as charges for services, operating and capital grants, and contributions. General revenue is defined as the
primary unrestricted funding sources, such as property taxes, sales taxes, and basic state aid.



THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2009

Table 3A—Changes in Net Assets—Governmental Activities (Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental activities

Increase

2009 2008 (decrease)

Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 2213 3,940 (1,727
Operating grants and contributions 62,855 55,237 7,618
Capital grants and contributions 733 1,518 (785)

General revenues:

Property taxes 152,705 159,256 (6,551)
Prop C sales tax 20,180 23,052 (2,872)
Other local revenues 3,600 2,100 1,500
County governmental contributions 4,209 4,025 184
State aid—basic formula 70,172 89,733 (19,561)
Grants and entitlements 821 1,051 (230)
Investment earnings 4,500 10,486 (5,986)
Total revenues 321,988 350,398 (28.410)

Program expenses:
Administration 25,512 23,464 2,048
Instruction 175,174 193,545 (18371)
Support services 76,835 79,253 (2,418)
Operation of facilitics 40,936 44,579 (3,643)
Pupil transportation 17,211 18,703 (1,492)
Facilities Improvement and Renovation 7,909 1,413 6,496
Community and adult services 8,478 11,557 (3,079
Interest on long-term debt 2791 3,902 (LI1D
Total expenses 354,846 376,416 (21,570)
Excess (deficiency) before transfers (32,858) (26,018) (6,840)
Realized gain (loss) from sale of capital assets 1,419 (17,319) 18,738
Transfers 1,000 750 250
Increase (decrease) in net assets (30,439 (42,587) 12,148
Net assets beginning of year 528,650 571,237 (42,587)
Net assets end of year $ 498211 528 650 (30,439)




THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
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June 30, 2009

A graph of major District revenues is shown below.

$180,000,000 : —_—
$160.000,000 Major District Revenues
$140,000,000 +
$120,000,000
$100,000,000 =
580,000,000 + .
$60,000,000 + =
$40,000,000
420,000,000 +———— . I - — :
SD Cperating g
Year Property Taxes ng;:"a State Aid-Basic G:]':l“
Contributions
m3eries] Hioyw S150. 4401 SHDTHDIRS 70,141,500 ShE LS
mSerlas? Hiox 154,250,440 S4.5001.4N R R 558,247 )00
Serles3 20/ 51482294928 525,047,214 590,451 Sbt 23250
Wheriesd 2000 5146.229.92% 528,167,248 547,105,861 5111 #24.301
Seriend 2005 5135.884.580 527,035,396 553,533,312 5109 455752

The most significant changes in revenues were:

e Operating grants and contributions (primarily federal grants) increase 13.8% or $7.6 million that
impacted the following programs:

e Medicaid reimbursements increased by $6.4 million because $1.4 million related to services provided in
fiscal year 2008 was collected during the fiscal year.

e Revenues from Consolidated Federal Programs increased by $4.7 million.
e Revenues for Entitlement grant decreased by $1.8 million.

e Reimbursements for meals served under the Child Nutritional Services program decreased by $.7
million due primarily to the loss of the schools to the Independence School district.

e Prop C sales tax declined by $2.87 million or 12.5% because the funding distribution is based on pupil
count and the District’s average daily attendance declined in the current year.

e Property tax revenue decreased by 4.1% or approximately $6.6 million because of a 1% decrease in
assessed valuation.

e State Aid distributed under the basis formula decreased by 21.8% or approximately $19.6 million. This
reduction was caused by the decline in enrollment. The FY09 distribution was based to FY07 weighted
average daily attendance (WADA) of 26,360 compared to WADA of 29,573 for FY08.
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The most significant changes in expenses occurred in the following areas:

e Administration—The cost of legal services and the amount paid for legal settlement increased by $2.4
million.

e Instruction — Teachers” salary and fringe benefits, and materials and supplies decreased primarily due to
a decline in enrollment during the fiscal year.

e  Operation of Facilities — Due to the loss of 7 buildings in the Independence Annexation in fiscal year
2008, Utility cost decreased by approximately $1.4 million. Use of consultants and other outside
contractors declined by $3.7 million.

e  Pupil Transportation — Transportation costs declined by approximately $1.5 million primarily due for
decline in enrollment.

e Community and Adult Services — The 26% decline was primarily caused by reduction in salary and
fringe cost of the extended day program and a reduction in contract services.

e Interest on long-term debt — When the outstanding leasehold revenue bonds were refinanced in 2003,
the principal payment decreased from $28 million in fiscal year 2008 to $13 million in fiscal year 2009,

Sufficient reimbursements were collected and/or accrued to cover costs incurred in the Community Service
Fund, as shown in Table 3B—Changes in Net Assets—Business-type Activities.

Table 3B—Changes in Net Assets—Business-type Activities (Expressed in Thousands)

Increase
2009 2008 (D ecrease)
Community services:
Charges for services $ 287 728 441)
Expenses (194) (389) 195
Revemie over expendiures before transfers 93 339 (246)
Investment Interest — 8 ®)
Transfers (1,000) (750) (230)

The District provided after school tutoring under the Supplementary Education Services program funded by
Title I. As a result, revenues decreased $.44 million and expenditures decreased $.19 million. Salary and fringe
costs decreased by $.2 million and materials/supplies decreased by $.02 million when compared to the prior year.

Table 4—Cost of Services—Governmental Activitics shows the cost of services for governmental activities. The
total cost of services column contains all costs related to functions/programs. The net cost of services column
shows how much of the total cost is not covered by program revenues. Net costs (or 81.5% of the total cost) are
costs that must be covered by unrestricted state funding and local taxes. When compared to the prior year, net
cost of services as a percentage of total cost decreased 8.5% because of the implementation of the new
foundation formula. This formula reduced the amount of funding allocated to specific categories to be applied
toward certain program expenditures. As a result, the District is required to classify more State Aid as general
revenue.
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Table 4—Cost of Services—Governmental Activities (Expressed in Thousands)

Total cost Net cost
of services of services
Administration $ 25512 25511
Instru ction 175,174 137,427
Support services 76,835 56,775
Operation of facilities 40,936 40,6 86
Pupil transportation 17211 10,801
Facilities improvements and renovations 7,909 7414
Community and adult services 8,478 7.640
Interest on long-term debt 2,791 2,791
Total $ 354,846 289,045

The District received program revenues specifically to offset the cost of certain functions/programs. The major
source of this type of revenue, that totaled $62.9 million, is from operating and capital grants and contributions.
Operating and capital grants, and contributions are funds the District receives that are restricted to a particular
purpose as show in the graph below.

Operating Grants & Contributions
(expressed in thousands)

Early Childhood

Entitlement Special Education
$4.92 $3.17
7.83%. SHeR I Transportation

$2.23
13.09%
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Services
$10.0 Program
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$0.93
1.48%

|
|
Medicaid_/-"l\

$8.07
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Federal
Programs
$18.62
Head Start 29.82%
$3.47
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Early
Reading First
$4.06 $1.40
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Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds

Governmental funds—The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s
financing requirements. In particular, the unreserved, undesignated fund balance serves as a useful measure of
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The General Fund, Teachers’ Fund, and a portion of the Capital Projects Fund make up the District’s operating
budget. Revenue is transferred to the Teachers’ Fund to cover expenditures, leaving a zero fund balance. The
fund balance in the Capital Projects—Operating Fund is used to cover debt service costs, reducing the required
amount to be transferred from the General Fund. At June 30, 2009, the unreserved fund balance of the operating
budget funds is shown below:

Total
Operating budget funds Reserved Unreserved fund balance
General $ 1,852,834 45,443,025 47,295,859
Capital projects—operating portion 4,018,519 5,946,223 9,964,742
$ 5,871,353 51,389,248 57,260,601

As a measure of the operating budget liquidity, it may be useful to compare both the unreserved fund balance and
total fund balance to total expenditures. The total fund balance represents 21.9% of total operating expenditures
and transfers. The total operating fund balance increased by 4.4% when compared to fiscal year 2008.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Table 5A- Budget Comparison shows a summary of the major changes in the current year original and
final budgets. The difference in revenues between the original and the final budgets is an increased of
approximately 4.8%. Based on the final assessed valuation received in August 2009, property taxes
increased by $1.8 million. The projections for investment earnings, financial institutional tax and other
local grants increased by $4.9 million. Proposition C (sales taxes) and basic formula state aid decreased
by $3.9 million because of the decline in the weighted average daily attendance and DESE’s adjustment
for Charter Schools average daily attendance. Additional federal grant awards of $7.8 million were
received after the original budget was approved. Also, the District eliminated its Internal Service Funds
during the fiscal year that resulted in transfers of surplus fund balance to the General Fund of
approximately $17.2 million.

Expenditures and transfers out increased by 2.7%. Budgeted expenditures increased by $8.8 million
primarily to fund certain salary increases approved by the Board under union agreements, additional
materials and supplies as a result of the Independence Annexation and federal grant awards for Title I
and Title II received after the original budget was approved.
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When comparing the original budget to the final budget, there was a favorable variance of $25.8
million for revenues and transfers in, and an unfavorable budgeted variance for expenditure and
transfers out of $6.8 million, reducing the use of fund balance from $19 million to $.1 million. This
deficit was funded by a one time transfer from the Internal Service Funds of $14.8 million and the
transfer of $1 million from the Enterprise fund.

When compared to the prior year (see Table 5B), budgeted revenues and transfers in decreased by 2.7%
and expenditures and transfers out decreased by 8%.

Table SA—Budget Comparison, Original to Final Budget, Fiscal Year 2009

Revenues and Expenditures
Transfers In and Transfers Out
Original budget $ 231,454,438 250,450,097
Final budget 257,302,803 257,245,046
Increase (decrease) $ 25,848,365 6,794,949

Table 5SB—Budget Comparison, Current Year to Prior Year

Revenues Expenditures
and transfers in and transfers out
Fiscal year 2009 final budget $ 257,302,803 257,245,046
Fiscal year 2008 final budget 264,351,244 280,661,971
Increase (decrease) $ (7,048.,441) (23,416,925)
Percentage of change (2.67)% (8.34)%
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Major Funds—Financial Highlights

e  When compared to fiscal year 2008, General Fund revenues and transfers in increased by $7.1 million
or 2.9%, and expenditures and transfers decreased by $11.6 million or 4.4%. The General Fund’s ending
fund balance is used to balance the operating budget. The level of fund balance in the General Fund is
declining in relation to annual revenues, as shown in the graph below. This ratio is analyzed to determine if
there is adequate budgetary carryover to meet unfunded emergencies and other unplanned needs.

General Fund
Fund Balance as a 26 of General Fund Revenues
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0 n 0 o u
Revenue 16.56% 16.77% 24.29% 19.00% 19.92%

15



THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2009

e The Teachers’ Fund revenues and expenditures decreased by $20.2 million or 11.4% because of
declining enrollment.

e There were no significant changes in fund balance in the Other Special Revenue Fund.

e The Debt Service Fund’s revenues and other financing sources decreased by $26.5 million or 63.2% as
a result of the decline in interest income earned on investments and the amount of the leased payment.
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets were $12.9 million in fiscal year 2008 compared to $1.4 million in
fiscal year 2009. Expenditures plus financing uses increased by $23.7 million or 59% primarily because the
annual principal and interest payment decline from $26.5 million in fiscal year 2008 to $13.2 million for
fiscal year 2009. In addition, the District transferred $30 million held by the Trustee, to the Capital Project
Fund. Proceeds from the sale of capital assets of approximately $14 million were placed in escrow for the
defeasance a portion of the leasehold revenue bonds.

e The Capital Projects Fund’s revenues and other financing sources increased by $28.8 million or 121.4%
primarily caused by the transfer of $30 million from the Trustee that was held in escrow to fund future
capital improvements. Expenditures increased by $16.0 million primarily cause by an increase in capital
improvements projects of $12.7 million completed during the fiscal year and the reduction in the amount
required for the lease payment to the Building Corporation which presents the principal and interest
payments on the leasehold revenue bonds.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets—The District’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2009
amounts to $411.6 million (net of accumulated depreciation). The investment in capital assets includes land,
buildings, building improvements, improvements other than buildings, equipment, fixtures and vehicles. Capital
assets decreased by $5.9 million during the fiscal year. Table 6 below shows capital asset by function for
governmental activities. Also see note 3(c) for additional information.

Table 6—Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

2009 2008

Land 42,320,265 42,537,492
Buildings 347771911 353,445,366
Improvements other than buildings 12,887,289 14,241,682
Equipment and fumiture 3,571,124 6,858,068
Vehicles 327,630 161,548
Construction in progress 4725777 253,111

411,603,996 417497267
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Long-term debt—The Building Corporation issued leasehold revenue bonds to finance the District’s major
capital improvement projects in prior years. At year-end, the outstanding principal balance on bonds was
$44 .3 million. The District is required to make lease payments to the Building Corporation in an amount
sufficient to cover principal and interest payments each year. During the current fiscal year, approximately
$13.5 million was available to the Trustee in compliance with this requirement. Approximately 3.7% of total
District expenditures relate to payments of principal, interest, and bond-related costs. See notes 3(f) and 3(g) for
additional information.

Economic Factors That Impact Fiscal Year 2010 Budgets

e The fiscal year 2010 comprehensive operating budget was approved by the Board on June 24, 2009.
Fiscal year 2010 projected current revenues of approximately $280.4 million is a decrease of about $62
million (or 18%) when compared to fiscal year 2009.

o Local revenue from property taxes declined by $8.6 million as a result of a reduction in assessed
valuation of $161.2 million and the estimated collection rate of 91%.

o Proposition C sales taxes declined by $3.9 million as a result of the reduction in the weighted
average daily attendance factor caused by declining enrollment.

o Financial institution taxes are expected to decline by $1.3 million.

o Investment earnings, local grants and subsidies are expected to decline by $7.2 million.

o State aid is expected to decline by approximately $12 million as a result of the reduction in the
weighted average daily attendance factor.

o Federal grants declined by $10 million, however, it is anticipated that additional federal grants
will be awarded during the fiscal year.

e Fiscal year 2010 expenditures of approximately $298.8 million represent a decrease of about $46.9
million (or 13.6%) when compared to the prior year. Seven school buildings were closed at the end of
fiscal year 2009.

e Approximately $18.4 million of fund balance was used to balance the fiscal year 2010 comprehensive
operating budget.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for our citizens,
taxpayers, investors, banks, and creditors. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the School District of Kansas City, Missouri,
1211 McGeg, 6th Floor, Kansas City, Missouri 64106, Attn: Chief Financial Officer.
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2009
Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total
Assets:
Cash and investments 164,898,608 339,051 165,237,659
Restricted cash and investments 12,633,012 — 12,633,012
Taxes receivable (net of allowance
for uncollectibles) 22,881,369 — 22.881.369
Interest receivable 1,044,608 — 1,044,608
Due from other governmental units 13,552,993 — 13,552,993
Due from community/charter schools — 183,016 183,016
Other receivables 573,569 — 573,569
Supplies inventories 938,861 — 938,861
Other post-employment benefits 1,771,920 — 1,771,920
Capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation):
Nondepreciable 47,046,042 — 47,046,042
Depreciable 364,557,954 — 364,557,954
Assets declared surplus 5,020,821 — 5,020,821
Total assets 634,919,757 522,067 635,441,824
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other 16,909,169 — 16,909,169
Accrued salaries, benefits, and payroll taxes 47,591,030 — 47,591,030
Claims payable 719,928 — 719,928
Accrued interest payable 898,482 — 898,482
Unearned revenue 2,925,033 — 2,925,033
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year:
Compensated absences 7,947 715 — 7.947.715
Revenue bonds 10,385,000 — 10,385,000
Due in more than one year:
Compensated absences 14,447,074 — 14,447,074
Revenue bonds 33,950,000 — 33,950,000
Unamortized premium on bonds 935,454 — 935,454
Total liabilities 136,708,885 — 136,708,885
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 371,354,363 — 371,354,363
Restricted for:
Debt service 11,967,633 — 11,967,633
Workers’ compensation 282,013 — 282,013
Permanent fund, nonexpendable corpus 35,000 — 35,000
Patron gifts 204,484 — 204,484
Unrestricted 114,367,379 522,067 114,889,446
Total net assets 498,210,872 522,067 498,732,939

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to Statement of Net Assets

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2009
Fund balances—balance sheet $ 131,201,895
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are
different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds 411,603,996
Federal food commodities 163,043

Liabilities, including bonds payable and accrued interest payable on bonds, are
not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported

in the fund:

Bonds payable (44,335,000)
Unamortized premium on bonds net of deferred charges (935.,454)
Accrued interest payable (898.482)
Other post-employment benefits 1,771,920
Compensated absences (22,394,789)
Claims payable (719,928)
(67,511,733)

Deferred revenue—property taxes 22,753,671
Net assets of governmental activities $ 498210872

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2009

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:
Net change in fund balances—total governmental funds $  (36,456,879)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets 1s allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays, which exceeded the capitalization threshold, exceeded depreciation
expense in the current period.

Capital outlay additions 15,395,385
Depreciation expense (15,861,217)
(465,832)

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net assets.

Proceeds from sale of capital assets (1,400,601)
Gain on sale of capital assets 1,314,924

(835,677)
Assets declared surplus-unrealized proceeds (1,826,463)
Assets declared surplus-unrealized loss (3,515,299

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 4,837,311

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of
long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. In addition,
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and
similar items when debt 1s first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items:

Principal payment on revenue bonds 22,850,000
Principal payment on capital lease 495,408
Amortization on premium and deferred charges, net 187,056
Accrued interest payable 453,338

23,985,802

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds:

Other post-employment benefits 1,354,789
Compensated absences (1,060,160)
Claims payable (36,199)

258,430

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
Administrative Service Center and Risk Management to individual funds.
These funds were closed and a transfer is recorded in the funds, however, the
net assets were already reported in the governmental activities. (17,170,479)

Change in net assets of governmental activities $  (30,439,086)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Statement of Net Assets—Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2009

Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and Investments
Restricted cash and investments
Interest receivable
Other receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible
Supplies inventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Claims and judgments

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets
Restricted for:
Workers” compensation
Unrestricted

Total net assets

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets—
Proprietary Funds

Year ended June 30, 2009

Nonmajor Internal
Enterprise Service
Fund Funds
Operating revenues:
Charges for tutoring program $ 254,695 —
Charges for community support services 31,970 —
Charges for administrative services — —
Total operating revenues 286,665 —
Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages, and employee benefits 193,625 —
Utilities, supplies, and materials — —
Other contractual services — —
Other _ _
Depreciation — _
Total operating expenses 193,625 —
Operating income (loss) 93,040 —
Nonoperating revenues,
mterest income 3,346 —
Income (loss) before transfers 96,386 —
Transfers in —_ _
Transfers out (1,000,000) (17,183,872)
Changg in net assets (903,614) (17,183,872)
Total net assets, beginning of year 1,425,681 17,183,872
Total net assets, end of year $ 522,067 —

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Statement of Cash Flows—Proprietary Funds

Year ended June 30, 2009

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Receipts from interfund services provided
Receipts from insurance claims
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital and related financing activities:
Transfers to other funds
Transfers from other funds

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital
and related financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchase of capital assets
Net cash (used in) capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest income received

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation expense
Decrease in other receivable
Increase in inventories
Decrease in due from community/charter schools
Decrease in accounts payable
Decrease in claims payable

Total adjustments

Net cash (used in) operating activities
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139,049
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Statement of Cash Flows—Proprietary Funds (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2009

Noncash, transfer of assets and liabilities to General Fund:
Interest receivable
Other receivables
Supplies inventories
Accounts payable
Claims payable
Noncash, transfer of capital assets

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

27

Nonmajor
Enterprise
Fund

Internal
Service
Funds

(204,798)
(43,006)
(240,009)
68,371
673,248
(13,393)

240,413




THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
June 30, 2009

Assets:
Investments
Interest receivable

Total assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Total habilities

Net assets:
Net assets held in trust for other purposes

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
June 30, 2009

Additions:
Contributions:
Private donations

Total contributions

Investment income:
Interest

Total investment income
Total additions

Deductions:
Scholarship awards

Total deductions
Net increase
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Reporting Entity

The School District of Kansas City, Missouri (the District) is a political subdivision of the State of
Missouri and is governed by an elected nine-member board of directors (the Board). Accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the financial reporting
entity include: (1) the primary government, (2) organizations for which the primary government is
financially accountable, and (3) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. These basic financial statements include the
District and its component units. The blended component unit discussed below is included in the
District’s reporting entity because of the significance of its operational or financial relationship with
the District.

Blended Component Units—The School District of Kansas City, Missouri Building Corporation (the
Building Corporation) is governed by a nine-member board of directors that is appointed by the
District’s Board. Although it is legally separate from the District, the Building Corporation is
included as if it were a part of the primary government because its purpose is to provide financing
for District capital projects and service the related debt through lease agreements with the District.
The accounts of the Building Corporation as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009 are included in
the basic financial statements as a Debt Service Fund. The Building Corporation does not issue
separate financial statements.

Charter Schools—Charter schools are established within the boundaries of the District by state
statutes as local educational agencies. Eighteen charter schools were operating during fiscal year
2009. Under current Missouri statutes, charter schools are allowed to be a Local Education Agency
(LEA). All charter schools are currently operating as LEA’s.  Accordingly, the accounts of these
charter schools are not included in these financial statements.

(b) Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The District’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide financial statements and
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements. The government-wide financial
statements report information on all the non-fiduciary activities of the District and its component
units. The government-wide statements include a statement of net assets and statement of activities.
Governmental activities are supported by taxes, state aid, and intergovernmental revenues and are
reported separate from business-type activities. The District has classified activity accounted for in
the Community Service Fund as business-type activity.

The statement of net assets reports the financial condition by disclosing the assets of the District
(cash, investments, receivables, land, buildings, and equipment) and the liabilities of the District
(accounts payable, wages and benefits payable, bonds payable, and other obligations).
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function. Program revenues include charges paid by recipients of the services offered by the
program, grants, and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational and capital
requirements of certain programs. Property taxes, state aid, and other revenues not included among
program revenues are reported as general revenues. The comparison of direct expenses to program
revenues identifies the extent to which each District function is self-supporting or relies on general
revenues.

The District maintains separate funds for certain functions or activities for internal accounting and
financial reporting and to demonstrate compliance with state statutes. These fund financial
statements are designed to present financial information at a more detailed level by identifying each
major fund in a separate column and non-major funds aggregated in a single column. Fiduciary funds
are reported separately by type.

(¢) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprictary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. All current and noncurrent assets and liabilities are disclosed on the statement of net
assets. On the statement of activities, revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized
as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements are met.

Governmental fund financial statements utilize the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Generally, only current assets and current liabilities are
included on the balance sheet when reporting financial condition. When reporting operating results,
only sources and uses related to the current period are disclosed. Revenues are recognized in the
accounting period in which they become susceptible to accrual, that is, both measurable and
available. Available means collectible within the current period, or soon enough thereafter, to pay
current liabilities. Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue criteria have
been satisfied. The primary source of local revenues is property tax. Property tax revenues are
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes have been levied. Deferred revenue for property
taxes arises when potential revenue does not meet both the “measurable” and “available™ criteria for
recognition in the current period. For property taxes, available is defined as expected to be received
within 60 days of fiscal year-end. Federal, state, and local grant revenues received as reimbursement
for specific purposes is recognized when the related expenditure is incurred and received within 60
days of fiscal year-end. Grants and entitlements received before the eligibility requirements are met
and are recorded as unearned revenue. Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting
period when the related fund liabilities are incurred. Principal and interest on long-term
indebtedness, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are
recorded when payment is due.

The District has the following major governmental funds.

. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

o The Teachers’ Fund, a special revenue fund, is used to account for the payment of
payroll and health insurance for certified staff.

) The Other Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources
for and payment of employee compensated absences and District contributions to the
retirement plan.

o The Debt Service Fund is used to account for accumulation of resources and payments
made for principal and interest on long-term leasehold revenue bonded debt.

. The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition, construction, or renovation of capital facilities and the purchase of equipment,
furniture, and fixtures.

The other governmental funds of the District are considered non-major. They are special revenue
funds that account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted for specific
purposes and are described below:

o The Child Nutritional Services Fund is used to account for the operation and
administration of the school cafeterias.

o The Patron Gifi Fund accounts for financial activities related to the use of private gifts
given to a specific school or program.

o The Student Activity Fund accounts for fundraising activities for schools and programs.

The District has one permanent fund, which is a non-major fund. This fund accounts for resources
that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that
support a specific school or program.

o The Patron Endowments Fund accounts for assets held by the District as a legal trustee
in situations requiring that the principal be preserved intact and only the interest be spent as
designated.

In addition, the District has the following non-major enterprise fund:

) The Community Service Fund is an enterprise fund type and accounts for accumulation
and allocation of costs associated with tutoring services provided by external vendors, leased
land and buildings, and event rental of facilities to the community. This fund is reported as an
enterprise fund because it is financed by external parties. Operating expenses are from salaries
and fringe benefits, utilitics, materials and supplies, and contractual services. Non-operating
revenues are interest income, transfers, and insurance recoveries.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee capacity or as an agent
for individuals, other government entities, and/or other funds. The District has the following
fiduciary fund:

o The Student Scholarship Fund accounts for private gifts received to benefit students
through scholarship awards.
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

In accounting and reporting for enterprise fund activities, the District applies all applicable
pronouncements of the FASB issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless these pronouncements
conflict with applicable GASB guidance as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 20. The District has
elected not to follow FASB guidance subsequent to November 30, 1989.

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as program revenues and/or expenditures in the
appropriate fund and functional activity. Goods and services (postage, printing, and food service
catering) provided by one fund for another fund are processed as interfund transactions and the
receivable/payable balances are adjusted monthly to cash for each fund affected. The effect of
interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. Interfund
services provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation.

(d)  Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity
1.  Deposits and Investments

The District maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds except
those identified as component units and the student activity fund. Each participating fund’s
portion of the pool is recorded on the balance sheet or statement of net assets as investments.
Earnings from such cash and investments are allocated to the funds based on the monthly
average fund balance during the year.

The District’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
and short-term investments with original maturities of 90 days or less from the date of
acquisition. The investment policy allows surplus funds to be invested in securities with
maturities not to exceed five years. The policy requires the District to adopt weighted average
maturity limitations that do not exceed three years and is consistent with the investment
objectives.

All mvestments are stated at fair value. The value of marketable securities 1s based on market
analyses provided by a securities pricing company through the District’s financial banking
nstitution.

State statutes authorize the District to invest in open time deposits; certificates of deposit;
bonds of the state, of the United States, or of any wholly owned corporation of the United
States; and in other short-term obligations of the United States. In accordance with these
statutes, the cash and investment pool is invested in certificates of deposit, United States
Treasury securities, federal agency obligations, and repurchase agreements collateralized by
United States Treasury securities and federal agency obligations. The investments are
purchased from Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) registered brokers, dealers, and
banks.

The Building Corporation’s investments are authorized by the applicable bond trust
indentures. It is the opinion of the District and its legal counsel that such investments of the
Building Corporation are not subject to state statutes regarding school districts. The Building
Corporation adopted a policy substantially similar to the District’s investment policy, except in
specific cases where the Building Corporation’s Board deems such policies inappropriate.
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

Restricted Cash and Investments

Certain proceeds of the Building Corporation’s leasehold revenue bonds, as well as certain
other District resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets. A
trustee holds these resources, and their use is limited by applicable bond covenants and/or
investment agreements. In compliance with Missouri Workers” Compensation laws, an escrow
account is held by a trustee to cover claims processed under the District’s self-insured
workers” compensation program.

Receivables and Payables

Within the fund financial statements, activity between funds that is representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year is referred to as either
“due to/from other funds” or “advances to/from other funds”. Any residual balances
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in
the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”. There were no internal
balances at June 30, 2009.

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund
balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not
available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible.

Property taxes are recognized as a receivable at the time they become an enforceable legal
claim. Property taxes are levied by the county assessor based on the assessed valuation of
taxable property as of January 1 of each calendar year (tax lien date). Taxes are billed the
following November 1 and become due on or before December 31. Tax bills not collected by
December 31 are considered delinquent and the unpaid amount is subject to interest and
penalties. The county is responsible for the collection and distribution of property taxes.
Assessed values are established by the county’s Department of Assessment and reviewed by
the County Board of Equalization and the state tax commissioner. The total assessed value at
January 1, 2008 for real estate, personal property, merchants and manufacturers, and railroad
and utility property was approximately $2.9 billion.

Inventories

In the government-wide financial statements, inventories are valued at average cost and
include items such as general maintenance, printing and duplicating supplies, postage and
unused federal commodities. Inventories are recorded on the consumption method, whereby
expenses are recognized at the time of issuance from inventory. Unused federal commodities
at year-end are reported as deferred revenue, as title does not pass to the District until the
commodities are used.

In fund financial statements, inventories are valued at average cost and include items listed
above, except unused federal commodities. Inventories are recorded on the consumption
method, whereby expenditures are recognized at the time of issuance from inventory.
Inventories in the governmental funds are offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates
that this amount does not represent available spendable resources.
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Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, building improvements, equipment, vehicles, and
furniture and fixtures, are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets
are defined as assets with an individual cost over a certain amount (see capitalization level by
category) and an estimated useful life of two years or more. Capital assets are capitalized at
cost or estimated historical cost. Donated fixed assets are valued at estimated fair market value
as of the date received. Major outlays for capital acquisitions and improvements are
capitalized as projects are constructed. All capital assets over the capitalization levels are
depreciated. The capitalization levels, by category, are:

Land and buildings $ 100,000
Building improvements 100,000
Equipment and vehicles 5,000

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful
lives:

Useful
life/range
Buildings 50 years
Building improvements 20 — 25 years
Improvements other than buildings 25 years
Equipment, furniture, and fixtures 5 - 10 years
Vehicles 4 years

The Board of Directors declared five closed buildings that will no longer be used for
educational purposes as surplus property. Once property is declared surplus by the Board, it
may be sold in compliance with bond covenants and State statues. The Governmental
Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 42- Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries (GASB 42) required that the
capital assets that are idle be disclosed separately. Therefore, the District has disclosed the
carrying value of these assets as “assets declared surplus™ in the statement of net assets.
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Compensated Absences

District employees earn annual vacation leave at the following rates:

Years of
Vacation days service
10 1 year
12 2 years
14 3 years
16 4 years
18 5 years
20 over 5 years

Vested unused vacation, up to a maximum of 60 days, is payable upon the date of termination
or retirement.

District employees accumulate sick leave at the rate of one-half day per reporting period.
Additionally, two personal business days are awarded each fiscal year. Personal days not used
are carried forward as accumulated sick leave. Vested, unused sick leave may be accumulated
up to a maximum of 200 days. The value of unused sick leave is payable upon termination or
retirement at a rate of 3% for each year of employment up to a maximum of 75% of total value
of sick leave.

Estimated vacation and sick leave payments due to employees at June 30, 2009 of
$22.7 million have been recorded in the government-wide financial statements. Within the
governmental funds financial statements, management has designated fund balance at June 30,
2009 of $21.1 million to cover these future payments. Payments of benefits to employees are
made from the Other Special Revenue Fund.

Interfund Transactions

Transfers of resources from a fund receiving revenue to the fund through which the resources
are to be expended are recorded as transfers and are reported as other financing sources (uses)
in the governmental fund financial statements.
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Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations
of the District are reported as liabilities in the governmental activities statement of net assets.
Bond discounts and issuance costs are reported as deferred charges. Deferred charges and
premiums on bonds are amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the governmental fund financial statements, bond premiums, discounts, and issuance costs
are recognized in the current period when incurred. The amount of the debt issued is recorded
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are recorded as other
financing sources, while discounts are recorded as other financing uses. Issuance costs are
recorded as debt service expenditures when incurred.

Fund Equity

In the government-wide financial statements and proprictary fund financial statements, net
assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital
assets, net of related debt, consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced
by the outstanding balance of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations
imposed on their use, such as bond covenants, grantors, or laws and regulations.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds record reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for a
specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent management plans for financial
resource utilization in a future period.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Restricted Net Assets

Restricted net assets consist of assets that are legally restricted by outside parties or by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation as reduced by recorded liabilities
which are payable for those assets (except for bonds used to acquire capital assets which are
presented as a reduction of net assets invested in capital assets).

The District first applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for
which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.
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(2) Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability
Fund Designations

In the fund financial statements, fund equity has been designated to represent managerial plans for
financial resource utilization in a future period. The District has the following designations of fund
balance at June 30, 2009:

) Designation for Compensated Absences—Management has designated a portion of fund
balance for the payment of accumulated vested vacation and sick leave to retiring or
terminating employees. A liability related to this designation is shown in the government-wide
statement of net assets.

) Designated for Long-term Building Maintenance—The Board designated fund balance
is to be used for the long-term maintenance and renovation of school buildings. At June 30,
2009, designated funds of $11,298,532 were shown in the Capital Projects Fund.

) Designated for Technology Plan—The Board authorized the development of a
Technology Plan and designated $25,000,000 to fund the cost of improving the use of
computer information technology for instruction and business management. At June 30, 2009,
designated funds of $2,783,551 were shown in the Capital Projects Fund.

) E-Rate/E-Rate Support-During the fiscal year, funds were set aside for the District’s
estimated costs related to implementation of the E-Rate Grant. At June 30, 2009, designated
funds of $1,848,494 were shown in the Capital Projects Fund.

) Designated for Grant Activity — Management has designated a portion of fund balance
related to local, state and federal grant activity on a life-to-date basis. Revenues and
expenditures are tracked by program number to ensure that the funds are used for their
intended purposes. At June 30, 2009, designated funds of $2,741,641 were shown in the
General Fund.

. CIP Escrow- Management has designated a portion of fund balance for proceeds to be
used for future capital improvement projects. The Board authorized the investment of a
portion of the desegregation settlement which was held by the Trustee, Bank of New Your
Mellon. Approximately $30 million was transferred from the debt service fund to the capital
projects fund during the fiscal year. At June 30, 2009, designated funds of $12,599,545 were
shown in the CIP Capital Projects Fund.

) Reserve for Contingency- Management has designated a portion of fund balance to be
held for unanticipated events and/or emergencies. At June 30, 2009, designated funds of
$5,000,000 were shown in the General Fund.
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Detailed Notes on All Funds

(a)

Deposits and Investments

The District and the Building Corporation had the following cash and investments at June 30, 2009:

Weighted
average
maturity
Investment type Fair value (years)
U.S. Treasury obligations $ 4,033,577 4.59
Government-sponsored enterprises 83,571,007 2.46
Repurchase agreements 31,020,000 5.59
Certificates of deposit 58,437,000 0.28
Total fair value 177,061,584
Portfolio weighted average maturity 3.23

Other cash and investments not subject to a
structured maturity date:

Money market funds 879,306
Deposits 503,339

1,382,645
Total cash and investments $ 178,444,229

Interest rate risk—The Board approved investment policy requires that the investment portfolio be
structured so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for day-to-day operations. Primarily,
operating funds are invested in short-term securities with a weighted average maturity of less than
12 months and securities are held to maturity. Investments may mature within no more than 5 years
from date of purchase. The policy requires the District to adopt weighted average maturity
limitations that do not exceed 3 years and is consistent with the investment objectives. The weighted
average maturity for the District’s portfolio is 2.25 years. The weighted average maturity for the
investments of the Building Corporation is about 5 years.
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Credit risk—Missouri statutes limits the type of investment securities that can be purchased (as
disclosed in note 1(d) 1), primarily, U.S. Treasury obligations and federal agency obligations. Credit
risk is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. At June 30, the District’s investments were rated as follows:

Moody's
Investors Standard
Investment type Service & Poor's
U. S. Treasury Obligations Aaa AAA
Government-sponsored enterprises
Freddic MAC Aaa AAA
Federal Home Loan Bank Aaa AAA
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation AAA AAA
Federal National Mortgage Association AAA AAA
Federal National Mortgage Association Global AAA AAA
Federal National Mortgage Association Step-Up Aaa AAA
Repurchase agreement AAA AAA
Repurchase agreement Aa3 AAA
Certificate of deposit NR NR
Money market funds NR NR

Concentration of credit risk - The District’s investment policy secks diversification to reduce overall
portfolio risk while attaining market rates of return to enable the District to meet its anticipated cash
requirements. The District follows diversification standards published by the Office of Missouri
State Treasurer. Those standards allows for no more than 60% of the total investment portfolio to be
in U.S. Government agencies and no more than 30% to be in U.S. Government callable agencies. At
June 30, the District had 33% of its investments in certificates of deposits, Missouri Securitics
Investment Program Term Series and 47% in callable U.S. Government agencies.

Collateralized repurchase agreements are limited to 50% of the total investments. At June 30, the
District had 17.5% of its investments in collateralized repurchase agreements.

Custodial credit risk—For deposits, this is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the District and
its component unit deposits may not be returned. Collateral is required by state statute for demand
deposits and certificates of deposit. The fair value of the collateral must equal 100% of deposits not
covered by federal deposit insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are governed by
State Statutes and include United States Government agency bonds and securities; general obligation
bonds of any of the 50 states; general obligation bonds of any Missouri county, certain cities, and
special districts; and revenue bonds of certain Missouri agencies. For investments, there is the risk

40



THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009

that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the District and its component units will not be
able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. At June 30, the District and the Building Corporation had $874,196 in bank balances
and in money market funds exposed to custodial credit risk due to the balance not being insured and

uncollateralized.

(b) Receivables

Receivables as of year-end for the major funds and nonmajor, and fiduciary funds in the aggregate,

including applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Other Nonmajor
Special Debt Capital and Enterprise
General Teachers’ Revenue  Service Projects  other(1) Fund Total
Interest $ 398,675 — 233229 293,194 115,833 10,247 - 1,051,178
Taxes 23,216,748 1,040,150 - — 3,367,132 - — 27,624,030
Due from other
governments 11,444314 175,951 - - 980,472 952,256 — 13,552,993
Due from other funds 410,325 — — — 316,321 — — 726,646
Community programs — — — — — 559,505 186,016 745,521
Other receivables 14,064 — — — — — — 14,064
Gross receivables 35,484,126 1,216,101 233,229 293,194 4779758 1522,008 186,016 43,714,432
Less allowance for uncollectibles  (3,544,253) (5,125) - — (1,176,987)  (16,296) (3,000)  (4,745,661)
Net total
receivables $ 31,939,873 1210976 233,229 293,194 3,602,771 1505712 183,016 38968771

(1) Nonmajor and other funds are comprised of nonmajor governmental funds and the student

scholarships private purpose trust fund.
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(¢) Capital Assets

Capital asset activity as of June 30, 2009 is shown below:

B eginning Transfers/ Ending
b alance Additions retiremen ts balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets,not being
depreciated:
Land 42,537,492 — (217,227) 42,320,265
Construction in progress 253,111 4,562,818 (90,152) 4,725,777
Total capital
assets, ot being
depreciated 42,790,603 4,562,818 (307,379) 47,046,042
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 551,326,837 10,056,921 (10,390,338) 550,993,420
Improvements other than
buildings 41,381,177 187,260 (119,111) 41,449,326
Equipment and furniture 31,906,458 367,596 (299,659) 31,974,3%
Vehicles 1,547,127 310,942 — 1,858,069
Total capital
assets being
depreciated 626,161,599 10,922,719 (10,800,108) 626,275,210
Less accumulated depreciation
for:
Buildings (197,881,471) (10,528,487) 5,188,449 (203221,509)
Improvements other than
buildings (27,139,495) (1,541,653) 119,111 (28,562,037)
Equipment and furniture (25,048,390) (3,646.,217) 291,336 (28403,271)
Vehicles (1,385,579) (144,860) — (1530,439)
Total accumulated
depreciation (251,454,935) (15,861,217) 5,598,896 (261,717,256)
Total capital assets,
being depreciated,
net 374,706,604 (4,938,498) (5,210,212) 364,557,954
Governmental
activities capital
assets, net 417,497,267 (375,680) (5,517,591) 411,603,9%
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Assets declared surplus were elementary school sites and an administrative center as disclosed on the

statement of net assets are summarized below:

Net Book Appraised Carrying
Building Name Value Value Value
Bingham $ 2,977914 3,200,000 2,977914
Greenwood 765,668 165,000 165,000
Faxon 1,715,012 75,000 75,000
Manchester 743,200 520,000 520,000
Marborough 1,347,364 500,000 500,000
Elementary 11 1,651,980 - -
Switzer Annex 751,007 1,000,000 751,007
Switzer/Old West 31,900 715,000 31,900
Seven Oaks 192,087 - -
$ 10,176,132 6,175,000 5,020,821

Within the government-wide financial statements, depreciation expense was charged to
functions/programs for governmental activities as shown below:

Elementary schools
Middle schools
Senior high schools
Other instruction
Special education

Total instruction

Improvement of instruction—curriculum development
Financial and internal services
Information technology

Total support services

Operation of facilities
Facilities acquisition and construction

Governmental funds depreciation expense

Total depreciation expense
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$ 7,416,674
2,877,341
4,508,966

16,125
322,172

15,141,278

2,014
7,935
254,550

264,499

172,546
282,894

15,861,217

$ 15,861,217
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In July, 2009 the District closed the following schools with net book value as of June 30, 2009 as follows:

Net Book
Building Name Value

Blenheim $ 3,567,810
Bryant 2,445,829
Chick 3,718,583
Cook 2,559,632
Graceland 3,609,808
Meservey 2,748,377
Pershing 1,660,221
Thacher 669,948

$ 20,980,208

Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

Interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2009 are as follows:

Fund Receivables Payables
Major funds:
General $ 410,325 —
Capital Projects 316,321 —
Debt Service — 316,321
Nonmajor fund:
Special Revenue (Child Nutritional Services) — 410,325
$ 726,646 726,646

The purpose of the above interfund balances is to reflect the payables and receivables between
certain funds at June 30, 2009. The Child Nutritional Services Fund receives reimbursements from
the state after submission of actual meal count data each month. Since there is about a 60-day delay
in receiving these reimbursements, the General Fund covers required disbursements, and at year-end,
the negative cash balance of $.4 million is reclassified as a due to/from other funds. The District is
required to make advance payments to the trustee and $.3 million represents excess deposits after
applying the proceeds from the sale of buildings to current debt service obligations.
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The following transfers were made during the fiscal year:

Transfers to

Debt Other Special Capital
General Teachers’ Service Revenue Projects Nonmajor Total
Transfers from:

General Fund $ - 100,029,222 - 658,014 - 1,800,000 102,487,236
Teachers' - - - 680,876 - - 680,876
Debt Service Fund - - - - 36,444,690 - 36,444,690
Capital Project Fund - 13,189,368 - 5,052,608 - 18,241,976
Internal Service Funds 17,170,479 - - 17,170,479
Nonmajor governmental - - - 29,188 24,775 - 53,963
funds - - - - - - -
Enterprise fund 1,000,000 - - - - - 1,000,000

$ 18,170,479 100,029,222 13,189,368 1,368,078 41,522,073 1,800,000 176,079,220

The District closed the internal service funds as of July 1, 2008 by transferring $17,170,479 net assets
into the General Fund.

The above fund transfers are the result of budget appropriations that required fund transfers.

(d) Accrued Salaries

School-based instructional staff, are compensated over a 12-month period beginning in August and
September. Remaining salaries and related payroll taxes for the fiscal year have been accrued at
June 30, 2009.

() Long-term Borrowings

Bonds Payable—Revenue bonds issued by the Building Corporation are supported by the revenue
derived from leases with the District in amounts sufficient to provide for estimated administrative
and operating expenditures, principal and interest on the bonds, and establishment of bond reserves
pursuant to the provisions of the applicable bond resolution. Certain bond issues hold land and
buildings as collateral in the event of default by the District. In the event the District sells these
assets, the District may be required to pay the difference between fair market value and the selling
price to the bond trustee under the bond covenants. All sales of such assets require bond counsel
concurrence and Board approval before the District can enter into such transactions.

The District has pledged, as security for the bonds issued by the Building Corporation, a portion of
the District’s property taxes. The bonds are payable through 2014. Total principal and interest
remaining on the debt is $50,247,140 with annual requirements ranging from $6 to $13.5 million.
For the current year, principal and interest paid by the District were $9.95 million and $3.24 million,
respectively.
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Bonds outstanding at June 30, 2009 are as follows:

Amount
Purpose outstanding
Series 2003A $ 10,440,000
Series 2003B 33,895,000

Interest rate Maturity year
4.00% to 5.00% 2014
4.00% to 5.00% 2014

$ 44,335,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for leasehold revenue bonds are as follows:

Governmental activities

Principal Interest
Year ending June 30:
2010 $ 10,385,000 2,170,830
2011 10,875,000 1,675,330
2012 9,770,000 1,131,780
2013 7.555.000 646,500
2014 5,750,000 287.500
Total $ 44,335,000 5,912,140
Changes in Long-term Liabilities
Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year was as follows:
Beginning Ending Due within
balance Additions Reductions balance one year
Governmental activities:
Leasehold revenue bonds $ 67,185,000 — (22,850,000) 44,335,000 10,385,000
Compensated absences 21,334,629 9,760,886 (8,700,726) 22,394,789 7,947,715
Capital lease 495,408 — (495,408) — —
Long-term
liabilities $ 89,015,037 9,760,886 (32,046,134) 66,729,789 18,332,715
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Compensated absences are liquidated from the Other Special Revenue Fund. The capital lease is
liquidated from the Capital Projects Fund and General Fund.

The District deposited $13,977,489 into an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to advance refund
$12,905,000 of leaschold revenue bonds and provide for all future debt service payments on the
$10,745,000 2003 A and $2,160,000 Series 2003B bonds.

As a result, the bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been

removed from the Governmental Activities. The advance refund was done to comply with federal tax
law mandates on the use of the proceeds from the 2008 sale of schools.
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Other Information

(a) Risk Management

Resources are accumulated in the General Fund for workers’ compensation, unemployment, and
general liability. The District qualifies as a self-insurer under Missouri Workers” Compensation laws
and maintains a reserve to cover estimated workers’ compensation claims incurred before
November 1, 1999. Restricted cash and investments of $282,013 as of June 30, 2009 are for the self-
insured portion of the workers compensation program’s reserve requirement. A commercial
insurance policy is purchased to cover current and future workers” compensation claims. Pursuant to
288.090:3(1)(a) of the Missouri Revised Statutes, the District participates in the State Employment
Security Program on a reimbursable basis and pays claims in lieu of contributions. The District
maintains a general liability reserve to cover claims in excess of existing commercial insurance
coverage that is funded by contributions from the General Fund.

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the District
purchases commercial insurance. Claim settlements have not exceeded commercial insurance
coverage for each of the past three fiscal years. Changes for the claims liability for fiscal years 2008
and 2009 is shown below.

Current
claims and Balance at
Beginning of estimated Claim fiscal
fiscal year changes payments year-end

Fiscal year 2008:

Claims and judgments 1,178,500 (494,771) — 683,729

$ 1,178,500 (494,771) — 683,729
Fiscal year 2009:

Claims and judgments 683,729 36,199 — 719,928

$ 683,729 36,199 — 719,928

(b)  Post Employment Benefits

School District of Kansas City. Missouri Post Employment Benefit Plan (OPEB)

The School District of Kansas City Missouri’s benefit plan is a single employer defined benefit
health care plan administered by the District that provides medical and long-term care insurance
benefits to eligible retirees and their spouses.
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Membership in the OPEB comprised the following at July 1, 2009:

Active employees 4,921
Retired participants medical 355
Retired participants spouse medical 49
Retired participants dental 1,009
Retired participants spouse dental 282

The annual required contribution (ARC) is the basic annual expense recognized under GASB
Statement No. 45, though there is no requirement to fund the ARC. ARC is calculated under the
actuarial cost method that was chosen and is made up of the normal cost plus amortization of the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL - excess of the past service liability over the actuarial
value of the assets). The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing
requirements, with an additional amount to prefund benefits as determined annually. For fiscal year
2009, the District contributed $1,923,393 to the plan. Plan members receiving benefits from OPEB
contributed $2,200,747.

Other Post-employment Benefit cost expense is computed based on the annual required contribution
(ARC) of the District. The annual required contribution is an amount of funding that if funded on a
regular basis, it is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities over a period not to exceed 30 years. The following table shows the components that make
up the District’s OPEB Cost for 2009:

Annual Required Contribution $ 562,094
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation (16,685)
Adjustment to ARC _ 23,195
Annual OPEB Cost (Expense) 568.604
Contributions Made (1.923.393)
Increase in net OPEB Obligation (Asset) (1,354,789)
Net OPEB Asset — Beginning of Year (417.131)
Net OPEB Asset — End of Year $(1.771.920)

The District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and
the net OPEB obligation (asset) for 2009 and 2008 (transition year) are as follows in the table below:

Fiscal Yr Ended OPEB Cost %o of Annual OPEB Cost Contributed Net OPEB Obligation (Asset)

06/30/09 $568,604 338.27% $(1,771,920)
06/30/08 $583,475 171.49% $ (417.131)
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As of June 30, 2009 the plan was zero percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits
was $15,529,352, and the actuarial value of assets was zero, resulting in an unfunded actuarial
accrued liability (UAAL) of $15,529,352. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $178,255,302 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 8.71%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about future employment, mortality and the health care cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contribution (ARC) of the
District are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and
new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is decreasing or increasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the
time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer and
plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial
value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In June 30, 2009 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 4 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is
a blended rate of the expected long-term investment returns on plan assets and on the District’s own
investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual
health care cost trend rate of 10 percent for medical claims, reduced by decrements to an ultimate
rate of 5 percent after four years. The UA is being amortized as a level dollar amount over a period
of 30 vears.

(c)  Status of Accreditation

The State Board of Education (SBE) accredits school districts through the Missouri School
Improvement Program (MSIP), which sets minimum standards for high school graduation,
curriculum, student testing, school resources, support services, and other areas of school operations.
The SBE’s accreditation review of Missouri school districts is based on the District’s compliance
with certain of these standards, grouped into “Resource™, “Process™ and “Performance™ categories.

In October 1999, the SBE voted to withdraw the District’s accreditation effective May 2000, due to
the District’s failure to meet the required MSIP standards during its Second Cycle accreditation
review by the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE). The areas reviewed by
the state were Resource, Process and Performance. The District met all the requirements for
Resource and Process at an accredited level, but the Performance standards (as measured by the
MAP achievement test) were below the accredited level. After a January 2002 accreditation
re-review by DESE (applying Second Cycle standards), the SBE voted unanimously on April 17,
2002 to grant the District provisional accreditation, thus lifting the threat of a state takeover.
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In January 2004, the state completed a full-scale accreditation review under Third Cycle standards,
covering all Resource, Process, and Performance criteria. The District retained its provisional
accreditation status. Two additional points are needed to obtain full accreditation status.

A team of reviewers from the DESE conducted an on-site accreditation review beginning the week
of April 28, 2008 and provided the review results to the District. The District created the Missouri
School Improvement Plan. Implementation is ongoing. All actions are scheduled to be completed
by Spring 2011.

(d) Commitments

On May 23, 2007 the Board approved an agreement with Kansas City Area Life Sciences Institute,
Inc., to provide curriculum materials, professional development, assessment and support for a
science education reform program that features hands-on, inquiry-based learning. The total cost of
these goods and services is $1,125,000. Annual expenditures of $375,000 will be paid through
July 15, 2009.

(e¢) Contingent Liabilities

The District filed suit on May 10, 2005 against the Board of Fund Commissioners, the individual
members of the Board of Fund Commissioners, the Missouri Department of Elementary and
Secondary Education, the Commissioner of Education, and the State of Missouri. The District’s
lawsuit seeks relief from a statute which allows the Board of Fund Commissioners to determine
whether or not the District has sufficient “fund balances™ to redeem or otherwise pay off leasehold
revenue bonds issued pursuant to desegregation related action. In April 2005 the Board of Fund
Commissioners voted that the District had sufficient fund balances to redeem or otherwise pay off its
obligations for leasehold revenue bonds and, therefore, could not continue to withhold money from
the charter schools pursuant to Missouri Revised Statute § 160.415(2)(5). For the 2004-2005 school
year, the District had withheld approximately $836 per pupil from each of the charter schools for
repayment of leasehold revenue bonds. The total sum of money withheld from the charter schools is
approximately $5 million per year.

The District’s lawsuit alleges the Board of Fund Commissioners™ determination was arbitrary and
capricious and the statute authorizing the Board of Fund Commissioners to make this determination
is unconstitutional.

Fourteen charter schools located within the District’s boundaries intervened in this case along with
their organization, the Missouri Charter Public Schools Association, and alleged a counterclaim
against the School District for the monies withheld from 1999 until April 2005. The District’s
motion for summary judgment on the Association’s counterclaim was denied. The Association’s
motion for summary judgment was granted and later reversed by the Court. The District’s claim that
the funding mechanism for charter schools is unconstitutional is pending.
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At the same time, the District filed a motion to enforce in the Jenkins litigation (the desegregation
lawsuit). This motion was granted by the Court. The Court held that the State could not take action
to jeopardize the financial stability of the District. The State Court stayed all proceedings in the case
pending the federal court’s decision in Jenkins. The Eighth Circuit upheld the decision and ordered
the State to continue allowing the District to withhold funds necessary to redeem desegregation
related bonds.

The Eighth Circuit’s ruling makes many of the issues in the case moot. However, the District’s
claim under Article X Section 11(g) of the Constitution and the Hancock Amendment claims for
repayment of all the local monies paid the charter schools since their inception in 1999 is still active.
In addition, the District’s claim for $6.1 million which was improperly withheld from the District
and paid to the charter schools from April 2005 to May 2006 is still pending. The District will
request a trial setting for the remaining issues at the status conference with Judge Beetem.

The District and three taxpayers filed suit on July 21, 2006 for declaratory and injunctive relief with
regard to a new statute which grants charter schools the status of local educational agencies, or
LEAs. This lawsuit alleges that the new statute requires the District to pay part of its local tax
revenues to independent charter schools in violation of the Missouri Constitution.

The Missouri Charter Public Schools Association (the same organization involved in the Board of
Fund Commissioners case, discussed above) intervened in the case. The State prevailed after trial
and the matter is currently pending at the appellate court level.

The District currently is involved in various other litigations, the outcome of which is uncertain. It is
the opinion of management and legal counsel the final outcome of these other matters will not have a
material impact on the District’s financial condition.

() Pension Plan

The District contributes to the Public School Retirement System, a cost-sharing, multiple-employer
and contributory defined benefit pension plan. Substantially all full-time employees of the District,
the Kansas City Public Library and charter schools are covered by the plan. The Public School
Retirement System provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. All benefit provisions are established and may be amended by the legislature of the
State of Missouri. The general administration and responsibility for the proper operation of the
Public School Retirement System rests with a board of trustees. Financial statements of the Public
School Retirement System can be obtained by writing to Public School Retirement System, 4600
Paseo Boulevard, Kansas City, Missouri 64106 or by calling (816) 472-5912.

Employee—All regular and full-time employees must become members of the Retirement System as
a condition of employment. Effective January 1, 1999, members contribute 7.5% of regular annual
compensation.
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Employer—Participating employers contributed 7.5% of annual compensation beginning January 1,
1999. The contribution rate is determined by the state. Prior to July 1, 1993, employer contributions
were actuarially determined.

The District’s contributions to the Retirement System for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007
and 2006 were $ 12,583,497, $12,591,876 and $12,323,052, respectively, which was equal to the
annual required contribution for the District.

(2) New Pronouncements

The District implemented the following Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) Statements during
the year:

e GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations:
This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting standards for pollution (including
contamination) remediation obligations, which are obligations to address the current or potential
detrimental effects of existing pollution by participating in pollution remediation activities, such as site
assessments and cleanups. This standard requires the District to estimate the components of expected
pollution remediation outlays and determine whether the outlays for those components should be accrued
as a liability or, if appropriate, capitalized when goods and services are acquired. This Statement had no
effect to the District in the current year.

e GASB Statement No. 52, Land and Other Real Estate Held as Investments by Endowments: This
Statement establishes consistent standards for the reporting of land and other real estate held as
investments. Endowments were previously required to report their land and other real estate held for
investment purposes at historical cost. However, such investments are reported at fair value by similar
entities, such as pension plans. The Statement requires endowments to report land and other real estate
investments at fair value. The changes in the fair value are to be reported as investment income. This
statement had no effect to the District.

As of June 30, 2009, the GASB has issued the following statements not yet implemented by the District. The
statements which might impact the District are as follows:

e GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, issued July 2007,
will be effective for the District beginning with its year ending June 30, 2010. This Statement provides
guidance regarding how to identify, account for and report intangible assets. The new standard
characterizes an intangible asset as an asset that lacks physical substance, is nonfinancial in nature and
has an initial useful life extending beyond a single reporting period. Examples of intangible assets
include easements, computer software, water rights, timber rights, patents and trademarks. This standard
provides that intangible assets be classified as capital assets (except for those explicitly excluded from
the scope of the new standard, such as capital leases). Relevant authoritative guidance for capital assets
should be applied to these intangible assets.
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e GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, issued June
2008, will be effective for the District beginning with its year ending June 30, 2010. This Statement will
improve how state and local governments report information about derivative instruments in their
financial statements. The Statement specifically requires governments to measure most derivative
instruments at fair value in their financial statements that are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The guidance in this Statement also addresses
hedge accounting requirements.

e GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, issued
March 2009, will be effective for the District beginning with its vear ending June 30, 2011. This
Statement is intended to improve the usefulness of information provided to financial report users about
fund balances by providing clearer, more structured fund balance classifications and by clarifying the
definitions of existing governmental fund types. Fund balance information is among the most widely and
frequently used information in state and local government financial reports. The GASB developed this
standard to address the diversity of practice and the resulting lack of consistency that had evolved in fund
balance reporting. To reduce confusion, the new standard establishes a hierarchy of fund balance
classification based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe spending
constraints.

The District’s management has not yet determined the effect these statements will have on the District’s financial
statements.
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Revenues:

THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
Schedule of Budgetary Comparison—General Fund
Year ended June 30, 2009

Property taxes
Prop C taxes
Other local

County

Basic formula
Other state
Federal sources

Tuition

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:

Administration:
Board of Education services:

Salaries

Benefits

Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total Board of Education services

Executive administration:

Salaries

Benefits

Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total executive administration

Building level administration:

Salaries

Benefits

Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total building level administration

Total administration

Instruction:
Elementary:

Salaries

Benefits

Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total elementary

Variance with

Original Final Final
budget budget Actual Budget
$ 139,311.816 141,103,445 142,237,401 1,133,956
14,088,732 13,089,878 12,612,616 (477,262)
3,673,772 8,642,633 7,235,543 (1,407,090)
3,281,343 3,550,351 3,947,565 397,214
25,327,985 23,120,482 23,270,915 150,433
11,779,334 11,077,960 10,389,551 (688,409)
33,055,068 40,940,034 37,672,281 (3,267,753)
— — 4,006 4,006
230,518,050 241,524,783 237,369,878 (4,154,905)
289,131 253,131 258,065 (4,934)
94,927 81,526 80,226 1,300
377,325 363,348 416,815 (53.467)
15,750 21,227 50,541 (29,314)
777,133 719,232 805,647 (86,415)
1,358,450 981,276 1,047,522 (66,246)
379,404 298,603 283,262 15,341
3,037,816 5,774,205 5,734,627 39,578
105,635 75,329 41,540 33,789
4,881,305 7,129,413 7,106,951 22,462
2,537,670 2,473,003 2,605,749 (132,746)
1,054,227 988,048 958,017 30,031
183,105 235,870 173,679 62,191
98,311 135,610 124,797 10,813
3,873,313 3,832,531 3,862,242 (29,711)
9,531,751 11,681,176 11,774,840 (93,664)
1,687,990 3,232,926 3,264,425 (31,499)
(1,214,891) 1,395,823 1,290,663 105,160
5,767,312 1,178,964 864,672 314,292
3,187,614 3,561,604 2,824,420 737,184
9,428,025 9,369,317 8,244,180 1,125,137
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Middle/junior high:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total middle/junior high

Senior high:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total senior high

Summer school:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total summer school

Special education:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total special education

Culturally different:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total culturally different

Vocational instruction:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total vocational instruction

Year ended June 30, 2009

Schedule of Budgetary Comparison—General Fund

Variance with

Original Final Final
budget budget Actual Budget
$ 131,916 56,353 51,960 4,393
62,968 14,595 16,650 (2,055)
402,245 113,199 124,040 (10,841)
185,644 228,472 368,615 (140,143)
782,773 412,619 561,265 (148,646)
113,317 311,383 299,004 12,379
(954,328) 87,067 105,390 (18,323)
2,465,753 297,900 385,529 (87,629)
1,220,968 2,773,341 3,063,318 (289,977)
2,845,710 3,469,691 3,853,241 (383,550)
2,624,505 3,065,970 2,846,688 219,282
945,443 972,855 892,935 79,920
892,186 376,687 551,840 (175,153)
2,288,189 1,859,186 1,894,754 (35,568)
6,750,323 6,274,698 6,186,217 88,481
4,107,964 3,755,534 3,733,708 21,826
805,876 1,522,382 1,451,976 70,406
6,374,684 6,764,193 5,765,559 998,634
383,234 347,813 268,173 79,640
11,671,758 12,389,922 11,219,416 1,170,506
1,515,167 1,623,366 1,408,802 214,564
777,734 753,368 637,340 116,028
3,858,218 4,312,851 3,003,016 1,309,835
831,260 2,155,615 1,619,760 535,855
6,982,379 8,845,200 6,668,918 2,176,282
176,885 184,098 182,184 1,914
69,785 64,082 64,799 (717)
46,334 178,977 149,226 29,751
223,980 543,239 469,254 73,985
516,984 970,396 865,463 104,933
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Variance with

Original Final Final
budget budget Actual Budget
Student activities:
Salaries $ 429,792 431,605 469,236 (37,631)
Benefits 53,236 52,322 63,255 (10,933)
Purchased services 353,098 341,706 323,953 17,753
Supplies and materials 155279 288260 235,187 53,073
Total student activities 991,405 1,113,893 1,091,631 22,262
Total instruction 39,969,357 42,845,736 38,690,331 4,155,405
Support services:
Attendance/placement:
Salaries 2,663,535 2,341,188 2,394,232 (53,044)
Benefits 945,979 874,534 758,548 115,986
Purchased services 2,882,308 2,830,750 2,698,941 131,809
Supplies and materials 32,200 43,176 71,838 (28,662)
Total attendance/placement 6,524,022 6,089,648 5,923,559 166,089
Guidance/counseling:
Salaries 732,527 738,102 804,258 (66,156)
Benefits 287,177 298,937 297,366 1,571
Purchased services 50,050 35,250 44,791 (9,541)
Supplies and materials 14,900 16,400 14,319 2,081
Total guidance/counseling 1,084,654 1,088,689 1,160,734 (72,045)
Health, psychology, and speech:
Salaries 1,981,277 1,572,946 1,616,267 (43,321)
Benefits 698,607 610,539 567,780 42,759
Purchased services 15,000 17,750 7,443 10,307
Supplies and materials 22,109 24.809 19,324 5,485
Total health, psychology, and speech 2,716,993 2,226,044 2,210,814 15,230
Improvement of instruction:
Curriculum development:
Salaries 514,348 672,672 468,226 204,446
Benefits 138,895 186,412 137,103 49,309
Purchased services 1,790,632 6,641,897 4,836,841 1,805,056
Supplies and materials 200,410 1,399,451 764,073 635,378
Total curriculum development 2,644,285 8,900,432 6,206,243 2,694,189
Staft training:
Salaries 134,275 157,775 166,487 (8,712)
Benefits 50,784 48,729 36,705 12,024
Purchased services 1,167,546 844,307 543,113 301,194
Supplies and materials 219,426 216,921 200,339 16,582
Total staff training 1,572,031 1,267,732 946,644 321,088
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Educational media services:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total educational media services

Financial services:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total financial services

Food service:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total food service

Internal service:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total internal service

Planning/research/evaluation:
Development services:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total development services

Schedule of Budgetary Comparison—General Fund
Year ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Original Final Final
budget budget Actual Budget
$ 434,742 344,420 374,875 (30,455)
154,114 122,755 129,111 (6,356)
46,700 52,260 38,792 13,468
1,292,100 1,353,670 1,234,487 119,183
1,927,656 1,873,105 1,777,265 95,840
1,567,189 1,372,085 1,340,562 31,523
490,739 376,743 390,111 (13,368)
589,121 598,644 576,252 22,392
54,759 67,707 56,465 11,242
2,701,808 2,415,179 2,363,390 51,789
16,967 — (3.392) 3,392
10,396 — (239) 239
180,529 284,216 250,427 33,789
207,892 284,216 246,796 37,420
480,937 407,882 645,166 (237,284)
137,010 114,729 202,154 (87,425)
48,000 71,793 (69,122) 140,915
6,400 8,200 (67,268) 75,468
672,347 602,604 710,930 (108,326)
679,952 571,581 686,546 (114,965)
168,041 124,621 180,618 (55,997)
795,755 783,266 803,995 (20,729)
47,400 47,808 26,604 21,144
1,691,148 1,527,276 1,697,823 (170,547)
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Admissions/communication services:

Salaries

Benefits

Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total admissions/communications

Human Resource services:

Salaries

Benefits

Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total personnel services

Information technology:

Salaries

Benefits

Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total information technology

Total support services

Operation of facilities:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Other purchased services
Other supplies and materials

Total operation of facilities

Pupil transportation:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total pupil transportation

Community and adult services:
Adult basic education:

Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Total adult basic education

Adult continuing education:

Salaries

Benefits

Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total adult continuing education

Year ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Original Final Final
budget budget Actual Budget
$ 512,453 294,359 310,502 (16,143)
165,286 95,786 94,421 1,365
428,966 859,576 860,989 (1,413)
9,500 31,019 12,511 18,508
1,116,205 1,280,740 1,278,423 2,317
1,323,913 1,412,666 1,418,761 (6,095)
454,187 374,376 398,004 (23,628)
1,016,896 1,105,257 965,951 139,306
24,000 20,500 19,909 591
2,818,996 2,912,799 2,802,625 110,174
1,836,519 1,757,571 1,842,120 (84,549)
494,951 437,139 508,536 (71,397)
3,867,978 4,260,967 4,881,092 (620,125)
190,930 189,930 533,077 (343,147)
6,390,378 6,645,607 7,764,825 (1,119,218)
32,068,415 37,114,071 35,090,071 2,024,000
17,710,496 16,153,482 16,691,033 (537,551)
6,602,331 5,921,006 5,765,263 155,743
11,476,147 11,786,295 12,565,930 (779,635)
37,600 57,053 141,024 (83,971)
2,605,693 2,391,017 2,841,424 (450,407)
908,775 1,371,799 2,810,267 (1,438,468)
39,341,042 37,680,652 40,814,941 (3,134,289)
18,547,600 18,177,678 17,209,448 968,230
6,610 6,610 1,811 4,799
18,554,210 18,184,288 17,211,259 973,029
230,647 185,334 640,283 (454,949)
93,663 67,322 177,001 (109,679)
86,111 38,962 31,868 7,094
23,007 70,735 40,403 30,332
433,428 362,353 889,555 (527,202)
— 4,948 6,631 (1,683)
— 211 648 (437)
— 4,875 4,134 741
— 2,995 1,712 1,283
— 13,029 13,125 (96)
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Community services:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total community services
Total community and adult services

Facilities/acquisition and construction:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Other purchased services

Total facilities/acquisition and
construction

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources

Revenues and other financing
sources over (under)
expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.

Variance with

Original Final Final
budget budget Actual Budget
3,952,292 4,341,669 4,385,319 (43,650)

1,336,279 1,333,690 1,214,987 118,703
981,390 1,017,711 761,401 256,310
317,735 737,276 444,016 293,260
6,587,696 7,430,346 6,805,723 624,623
7,021,124 7,805,728 7,708,403 97,325
146,485,899 155,311,651 151,289,845 4,021,806

84,032,151 86,213,132 86,080,033 (133,099)

936,388 15,778,020 18,170,479 (2,392,459)
(103,964,198) (101,933,395) (101,831,503) (101,892)
(103,027,810) (86,155,375) (83,661,024) (2,494,351)

$ (18,995,659 57,757 2,419,009 2,361,252
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Schedule of Budgetary Comparison—Teachers” Fund
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Variance with

Original Final Final
budget budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
Prop C taxes $ 8,453,239 7,853,927 7,567,571 (286,356)
Local — — 9,762 9,762
County 356,478 356,478 261,538 (94,940)
Basic Formula 52,868,065 47,497,780 46,900,651 (597,129)
State 480,400 469,800 543,290 73,490
Federal 508,049 502,813 1,474,332 971,519
Other 5,209 9,268 9,268 —
Total revenues 62,671,440 56,690,066 56,766,412 76,346
Expenditures:
Current:
Administration:
Executive administration:
Salaries 270,000 170,000 119,188 50,812
Benefits 88,071 39,818 24,934 14,884
Total executive administration 358,071 209,818 144,122 65,696
Building level administration:
Salaries 10,787,799 11,138,819 11,204,783 (65,964)
Benefits 2,773,173 2,656,922 2,579,377 77,545
Total building level
administration 13,560,972 13,795,741 13,784,160 11,581
Total administration 13,919,043 14,005,559 13,928,282 77277
Instruction:
Elementary:
Salaries 45,799,555 41,153,425 41,419,624 (266,199)
Benefits 14,131,945 10,588,193 11,523,070 (934,877)
Total elementary 59,931,500 51,741,618 52,942,694 (1,201,076)
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Middle/junior high:
Salaries
Benefits

Total middle/junior high

Senior high:
Salaries
Benefits

Total senior high

Other Instruction:
Salaries
Benefits

Total summer school

Special education:
Salaries
Benefits

Total special education

Culturally different:
Salaries
Benefits

Total culturally different

Vocational instruction:
Salaries
Benefits

Total vocational instruction

Student activities:
Salaries
Fringes

Total student activities

Total instruction

Year ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Original Final Final

budget budget Actual Budget
$ 4,129,496 5,498,243 5,591,195 (92,952)
1,226,510 1,362,547 1,575,844 (213,297)
5,356,006 6,860,790 7,167,039 (306,249)
15,302,693 15,912,561 15,797,865 114,696
4711,319 3,875,166 4,256,015 (380,849)
20,014,012 19,787,727 20,053,880 (266,153)
5,141,456 4,707,860 4,747,719 (39,859)
470,330 442 071 422375 19,696
5,611,786 5,149,931 5,170,094 (20,163)
22,036,424 19,369,538 20,214,965 (845,427)
6,732,743 4,933,159 5,276,656 (343,497)
28,769,167 24,302,697 25,491,621 (1,188,924)
3,120,385 4,340,598 3,411,754 928,844
978,218 1,028,795 863,707 165,088
4,098,603 5,369,393 4,275,461 1,093,932
1,977,126 1,900,179 1,800,856 99,323
565,224 510,814 461,755 49,059
2,542,350 2,410,993 2,262,611 148,382
803,404 801,817 804,011 (2,194)
62,644 63,411 71,453 (8,042)
866,048 865,228 875,464 (10,236)
127,189,472 116,488,377 118,238,864 (1,750,487)
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Support services:

Attendance/placement:
Salaries
Benefits

Total attendance/placement

Guidance/counseling:
Salaries
Benefits

Total guidance/counseling

Health, psychology, and speech:
Salaries
Benefits

Total health, psychology,
and speech

Improvement of instruction:
Current developments:
Salaries
Benefits

Total current developments

Staft training:
Salaries
Benefits

Total staff training

Educational media services:
Salaries
Benefits

Total educational media

Financial services:
Salaries
Benefits

Total financial services

Variance with

Original Final Final
budget budget Actual Budget
125,608 58,499 28,335 30,164
56,021 13,438 6,233 7,205
181,629 71,937 34,568 37,369
4,486,010 4,503,336 4,329,956 173,380
1,332,350 1,230,125 1,152,893 77,232
5,818,360 5,733,461 5,482,849 250,612
1,089,520 1,311,446 1,339,082 (27,636)
385,169 300,325 350,802 (50,477)
1,474,689 1,611,771 1,689,884 (78,113)
8,405,337 9,802,530 8,110,900 1,691,630
2,138,988 2,305,473 1,929,583 375,890
10,544,325 12,108,003 10,040,483 2,067,520
904,235 750,801 2,223,173 (1,472,372)
247,190 149,099 289,307 (140,208)
1,151,425 899,900 2,512,480 (1,612,580)
3,154,470 3,090,176 3,210,131 (119,955)
898,202 849,870 803,446 46,424
4,052,672 3,940,046 4,013,577 (73,531)
53,724 53,724 — 53,724
15,738 14,779 — 14,779
69,462 68,503 — 68,503
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Schedule of Budgetary Comparison—Teachers” Fund (continued)

Planning/research/evaluation/
development services:
Salaries
Benefits

Total planning/research/ evaluation/

development services

Human Resource services:
Salaries
Benefits

Total personnel services

Information technology:
Salaries
Benefits

Total technology services
Total support services

Community and adult services:
Adult basic education:
Salaries
Benefits

Total adult basic education

Adult continuing education:
Salaries
Benefits

Total adult continuing education

Community services:
Salaries
Benefits

Total community services

Total community and
adult services

Total expenditures
Revenues under expenditures

Other financing sources:
Transfers in

Revenues and other financing
sources over (under)
expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.

Year ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Original Final Final
budget budget Actual Budget

157,759 105,009 — 105,009
47,012 33,804 — 33,804
204,771 138,813 — 138,813
46,284 — — —
46,284 — — —
23,543,617 24,572,434 23,773,841 798,593
398,712 507,621 — 507,621
137,907 125,927 — 125,927
536,619 633,548 — 633,548

— 10,768 — 10,768

— 1,232 — 1,232

— 12,000 — 12,000
1,316,591 1,010,793 786,457 224,336
130,296 100,750 70,467 30,283
1,446,887 1,111,543 856,924 254,619
1,983,506 1,757,091 856,924 900,167
166,635,638 156,823,461 156,797,911 25,550
(103,964,198) (100,133,395) (100,031,499) 101,896
103,964,198 100,133,395 100,031,499 (101,896)
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
Note to the Required Supplementary Information
June 30, 2008

Budgetary Information

Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. For financial reporting purposes,
expenditures related to fringe costs are disclosed within the functional expenditure categories. In the GAAP-basis
statements, these costs are reclassified as transfers out. Annual budgets are prepared in accordance with Missouri
state statutes, which include estimated revenues from all sources, itemized by fiscal year, fund and source and
proposed expenditures itemized by fiscal year, fund, function and object. The legal level of budgetary control is
at the object level. The Board adopts annual appropriations for the following funds:

Major funds: Nonmajor funds:
General Child Nutritional Services
Teachers’

Capital Projects

The project (life-to-date) budget included in the Capital Project Fund activity is not appropriated annually and,
therefore, is not reflected in the accompanying budgetary comparison schedules. In addition, the Debt Service
Fund and Other Special Revenue Fund are not budgeted.

Budgets are not adopted for certain other nonmajor funds that include the Student Activity, Patron Gift and
Patron Endowments.

Appropriations are encumbered upon issuance of a purchase order for budget compliance. At year-end,
unencumbered appropriations lapse, and encumbered appropriations are generally reappropriated in the following
year. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as a reservation of fund balance in the governmental
fund statements.

In the governmental fund financial statements, certain fringe benefit costs are classified as a transfer out and
transfers into the Other Special Revenue Fund and the Risk Management Fund. In the budgetary comparison
schedules, these fringe costs are recorded as expenditures.

The Board must approve expenditures in excess of appropriations at the fund level. Budgeted expenditure
amendments during the fiscal year resulted in a 6.0% increase in the General Fund. The Board approved
expenditure amendments in the Teachers’ Fund of a 5.8% decrease.  Approved amendments to the Capital
Project Fund increased by 67.3%.
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Other Post-Employment Benefits
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial UAAL asa
Actuarial Accrued Liability Unfunded Percent of
Actuarial Value of Assets (AAL) AAL Funded Ratio  Covered Payroll Covered Payroll
Valuation Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (¢) ((b-a)/c)
6/30/08 $ - $ 5,271,862 $ 5,271,862 0% $192,477,445 2.74%
6/30/09 $ - $15,529,352 $ 15,529,352 0% $178,255,302 8.71%

Note: The District implemented GASB Statement No. 45 in fiscal year 2008.

The information presented as required supplementary information was determined as part of the June 30, 2009
actuarial valuation. The projected unit credit method was used. The actuarial assumptions include a 4%
investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and an annual health care cost trend rate of 10% for
medical claims, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5% after four years. The UAAL is being amortized

as a level dollar amount over a period of 30 years.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Child Nutritional Services Fund—
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance—
Budget and Actual

Year ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Original Final Final
budget budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
Local $ 2,326,453 1,407,798 1,050,082 (357,716)
State 90,000 90,000 66,362 (23,638)
Federal 11,800,000 10,850,000 9,517,210 (1,332,790)
Total revenues 14,216,453 12,347,798 10,633,654 (1,714,144)
Expenditures:
Current:
Support services:
Salaries 4,400,137 4,210,423 3,775,556 434,867
Benefits 2,441,251 2,391,136 1,898,978 492,158
Purchased services 842,942 956,189 1,032,199 (76,010)
Supplies and materials 6,368,123 6,490,050 6,280,320 209,730
Total expenditures 14,052,453 14,047,798 12,987,053 1,060,745
Revenues under
expenditures 164,000 (1,700,000) (2,353,399) (653,399)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in — 1,800,000 1,800,000 —
Transfers out — — (24,776) (24,776)
Total other financing
sources (uses) — 1,800,000 1,775,224 (24,776)
Revenues over
expenditures and other
financing uses $ 164,000 100,000 (578,175) (678,175)
Fund balance, beginning of year —
Fund balance, end of year $ (578.175)
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Capital Projects Fund—
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance—
Budget and Actual

Year ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Original Final Final
budget budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
Property taxes $ 6,738,574 7,671,289 7,688.471 17,182
Other local 356,698 974,792 1,360,411 385,619
State 68,975 36,291 — (36,291)
Federal 384,627 2,263,298 133,158 (2,130,140)
Other sources — — — —
Total revenues 7,548,874 10,945,670 9,182,040 (1,763,630)
Expenditures:
Capital outlay:
Administration:
Board of education services 3,500 4,118 3,354 764
Executive administration 25,645 7,000 579 6,421
Building level administration 6,000 20,628 12,213 8,415
Total administration 35,145 31,746 16,146 15,600
Instruction:
Elementary 25,866 283,303 200,783 82,520
Middle/junior high 54,000 42,084 31,932 10,152
Senior high 60,000 559,841 392,078 167,763
Summer school 19,000 19,000 1,460 17,540
Special education 23,510 20,799 15,175 5,624
Culturally different 307,157 1,948,148 1,629,535 318,613
Vocational instruction 183,711 518,097 577,674 (59,577)
Student activities 90,000 217,603 240,923 (23,320)
Total instruction 763,244 3,608,875 3,089,560 519,315
Support services:
Attendance/placement 10,000 10,491 6,481 4,010
Guidance/counseling 6,950 7214 5,579 1,635
Health/Psychology/Speech/Audiology — 3,250 3,249 1
Improvement of instruction:
Curriculum development 564,978 288,080 227,417 60,663
Staff training 7,000 540 2,545 (2,005)
Educational media services 93,639 241,643 111,025 130,618
Finance/support services 19,000 9,238 2,236 7,002
Food service 164,000 146,800 56,575 90,225
Internal service 2,000 1,118 39,072 (37,954)
Planning/research/development services 18,500 10,071 10,022 49
Admissions/communication services 11,700 1,364 4,985 3,621
Personnel services 11,000 2,000 — 2,000
Information technology service 1,176,150 3,888,965 1,533,876 2,355,089
Total support services 2,084917 4,610,774 2,003,062 2,607,712
Operation of facilities 149,638 640,608 797,447 (156,839)
Pupil transportation 5,580 — — —
Community and adult services:
Adult basic education 1,280 19,595 19,596 @))]
Community services 47,350 5,426 426 5,000
Total community and adult services 48,630 25,021 20,022 4,999
Facilities acquisition and construction:
Capital outlay 13,642,670 27.994,360 17,735,961 10,258,399
Other expenditures 16,000 — — —
Total facilities acquisition
and construction 13,658,670 27.994,360 17,735,961 10,258,399
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Capital Projects Fund—
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance—
Budget and Actual (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Original Final Final
budget budget Actual Budget
Debt service:
Principal $ 13,189,368 13,189,368 9,945,000 3,244.368
Interest — — 3,244 368 (3,244,368)
Total debt service 13,189,368 13,189,368 13,189,368 —
Total expenditures 29,935,192 50,100,752 36,851,566 13,249,186
Revenues under expenditures (22,386.,318) (39,155,082) (27,669.,526) 11,485,556
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 3,251,135 5,187,372 41,522,073 36,334,701
Transfers out (326,367) — (5,052,608) (5,052,608)
Unrealized proceeds- surplus assets — — 1,826,463 1,826,463
Sale of capital assets — — — —
Total other financing sources 2,924,768 5,187,372 38,295,928 33,108,556
Revenues and other financing
sources under expenditures
and other financing uses $  (19.461,550) (33,967.710) 10,626,402 44,594,112
39,921,608

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year $ 50,548,010
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS



THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Assets

Year ended June 30, 2009

Administrative
Service Risk
Center Management Total

Operating revenues:
Charges for administrative services $ — — —

Total operating revenues — — _

Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages, and employee benefits — — —
Utilities, supplies, and materials — — —
Other contractual services — — —
Other — — —
Depreciation — — —

Total operating expenses — — —

Operating income (loss) — — _

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest earnings — — —

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) — — —

Loss before transfers — — _

Transfers in —_ _ _
Transfers out (351,573) (16,832,299) (17,183,872)

Change in net assets (351,573) (16,832,299) (17,183,872)
Total net assets beginning of year 351,573 16,832,299 17,183,872

Total net assets ending of year $ — — —
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2009

Administrative
Service

Risk

Center Management

Total

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from interfund services provided $ —
Receipts from insurance claim —
Payments to suppliers —
Payments to employees —

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities —

Cash flows from noncapital and related financing activities:

Transfers to other funds (161,174) (17,263,111)

Transfers from other funds —

(17,424,285)

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital

financing activities (161,174) (17,263,111)

(17,424,285)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Sale of capital assets —

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities —

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest income received —

Net cash provided by investing activities —

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (161,174) (17,263,111)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 161,174 17,263,111

(17,424,285)
17,424,285

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ —

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ —
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation expense —
Decrease in other receivable —
Decrease in inventory —
Decrease in A/P and accrued salaries/fringes —
Decrease in claims payable —

Total adjustments —

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ —

Noncash, transfer of assets and liabilities to General Fund:
Interest receivable $ —
Other receivables (140)
Supplies inventories (240,009)
Accounts payable 63,143
Claims payable —
Noncash, transfer of capital assets (13,393)

(204,798)
(42.866)
5,228
673,248

(204,798)
(43,006)
(240,009)
68,371
673,248
(13,393)

&

(190.399)

430,812

240,413
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CAPITAL ASSETS



THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds by Source

(with comparative totals for June 30, 2008)

Capital assets (gross):

Land

Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Equipment, furniture, and vehicles
Construction in progress

Total

Investment in capital assets by source:

General fund
Capital projects
Special revenue
Trust and agency
Internal service
Donations

Total

June 30, 2009

78

Total

2009 2008
42,320,265 42,537,492
550,993,420 551,326,837
41,449,326 41,381,177
33,832,464 33,453,585
4,725,777 253,111
673,321,252 668,952,202
479,155 404,204
671,956,514 667,470,902
805,380 857,346
13,127 13,127
— 139,547
67,076 67,076
673,321,252 668,952,202
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STATISTICAL SECTION



Statistical Section

This section provides detail information to enable the reader to gain a better understanding of the District’s
financial statements, note disclosures and required supplementary information.

Contents

Financial Trends — These schedules contain trend information to help the reader
understand how the District’s financial performance and well-being have changed

over time. Table 1 — Table 4

Revenue Capacity — These schedules contain information to help the reader assess

the District’s most significant local revenue sources, the property tax. Table 5 — Table 8

Debt Capacity — These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the District’s current levels of outstanding debt and the District’s

ability to issue additional debt in the future. Table 9 — Table 11

Demographic And Economic Information — These schedules offer demographic
and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within
which the District’s financial activities take place. Table 12 — Table 13

Note: Personal income data is currently not available.

Operating Information — These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to

help the reader understand how the information in the District’s financial report relates

to the services the District provides and the activities it performs. Table 14
Note: The District is gathering prior year data about its operations for disclosure in future reports.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules comes from the comprehensive annual
report for the relevant year. Schedules presenting government-wide information begin in fiscal year 2002, when
GASB 34 was implemented.

81



4

6T€°5T9 €T€°109 870119 SLI'P6S 06€°88S  §  L90°ELS 9L0°0€S F€L°86F $198SE JO 10U JUDWIIoA0S Arewtid (8107,
6vF 11T T0TH0T $9T°0TT TWI°LYL 885°0F1 €L0O°8ET T8ELIT 068°F11 pajoLnsaIu)
LPS 101 6T0°1T1 795401 6¥6°16 795°08 P19 S0L°09 68%°T1 PRSI
€€€°T8T T60°9LT 12T°98T #80°6S¢ 90T°L9€  §  0SLELE 686°1S€ FSEILE 1G2p PIB[AI JO 10U ‘$10sSk [21IdRd UL PIIsaAU]
JUSUIUIDA0S ATBWII]
(08) 00T 89F 6L 801°T $ 6781 9TF1 (449 SJOsSE JO J9U ‘SanIATIOR ddA)-ssaursng [e)o T
(08) 00T 89F 6L 801°T $ 6781 9TF1 (449 pajoLnsaIu)
:san1anoe adA)-ssaursng
60¥°$T9 €T1°109 085°019 960°%6S 8FT°L8S §  BETILS 059°8TS 11T°86% S198SB JO 19U ‘SONTATIOR [RIUSUILIOACS [B10],
6TS°1¥T 700°%0T L6L61T €90°L¥1 08t°6€1 T OET 956°ST1 89¢ K11 pajoLnsaIu)
LPS 101 6T0°1T1 795401 6¥6°16 795°08 P19 S0L°09 68%°T1 PRSI
€€€°T8T T60°9LT 12T°98T #80°6S¢ 90TL9E  §  0SLELE 686°1S€ FSEILE 193p PIJEIDI JO JOU “sjasse [eyided UI pajsaAu]
‘SOT)TAT)OR [BIUSWIULIDAOL)
00T €00T ¥00T 00T 900T L00T 800T 600T uonesyisse|)
IBdX TeIsI
(poyrpneun)

1 91qeL

TINOSSIA ‘ALLD SVSNVY A0 LOTYLSIAd TOOHDS AHL

(spuesnotp) ur passaidxa sjunowe)
(Sununosoe jo siseq [enIooe)
SIBOX TeoST WS Ise]
Juouodwio)) Aq $19sSY 19N



€8

€88°L9¢ 08LFSE §  9968vE¢ §  86L°L9¢ § 8T9IE § 0860Lt § SO89LE 0¥0°6S¢ sosuadxo JuouruIenos Arewrid [ejo],
99L°9 SLT9 9TT’S 986°¢ 171 €69 68¢ ¥61 $o5UadX0 SONIATION [BIUSLIIIOAOS [E)O],
99L9 SLT9 9TT'S 98¢°¢ 11 § €69 § o8¢ vol SOOIAIOS AJUNUILIO)
sanianoe adA-sseursng
LTIT19¢ S0S 8 € OvL'EvE TITY9¢E LOS'89¢ § L8TOLE $ 9IPILE 98 YSE $osURdXd SANIATIOL [RIUSUILIGAOT [E1O],
950°11 00€°6 €89 6969 €209 867 T06°¢ 16L°C 19Op ULI9)-BUOT UO 1$I0)U]
0867 L8T'S 66S°S LOY'S LET9 9779 LSSTT 8LY'8 SOOIAIOS J[NPE PUE AJUNUWIO))
SOT°8I TLLT 891°1 — CI9 €0y €IVl 606°L UOT)BAOUDI PUE S)UITOAOIAT SONT[I0B]
¥09°1T €EVIT 856°1T 9TI°€T 886°€T (43 4 €0L°81 11T°L1 uonepodsuen [idng
€50°€E LT6YE €TrvE LTE9¢E 789°8¢ 000°0% 8LS VY 9¢6°0 sonioey jo uonerodo
S09°€L 119%L LSY6L 78598 126°¢6 8ELLL €ST6L SE8°9L soo1ates poddng
6TPSLI €69VLI 0S8ILI €91°T81 89T VLI vOE€61 Sreieel SLIGLY uononnNsu|
¢8T°€T wsYST § 1TPTT  § 8v9ET  § 98T § ToSST  § vov'eT TISST UORENSIUTUPY
:SOTTATIOR [BJUSTUUIOAOL)
sosuadxy
2007 €007 1 1]114 £002 9002 L00T 8002 6002 uoneILISSe[)
Jed X [edsI
(panpneun)

¢3lqe L

TINOSSIIN ‘ALID SVSNVY 40 LOTILSIAd TOOHDS THL

(spuesnot ur passaidxa syunotwe)
(3ununoooe Jo SIseq [BrLIovR)

SIBQ X TROST] WBIH IS8T
1988V JON UI sauer)



78

LSY8II 8T6TII 8LOIEI 758611 T8TITL T6L°99 $69°09 108°59 oNUOASI WEIB01d SATIATIOR [EJUIUILIGA0S [210],
— — — — — — — — Q2P WLR)-BUO] UO JSAIANU]
— 8 — 9] — — 198 71 SOOTAIOS J[NPR PUB AJTUNUIIO,)
IvL°01 LY8'L 6¥9°¢ — 1¢¢ — — cov UOT)BAOUDI PUE S)UITOAOIAT SONT[I0B]
— — — — — — — — uonepodsuen [idng
— — — — I1 oy — 681 sonioey jo uonerodo
€LT e8¢ ¥T0°TT ¥89°Y T9¢€°S L19 LE — soo1ates poddng
1¢8 IeL v9T’1 818 1< [4} 079 LE uononnsuy
— — — — — — — — UONRNSTUTUPY
suonnNqLuoo pue sjueId [ende)
— — — — — — — — Q2P WLR)-BUO] UO JSAIANU]
001 8TI°1 9L6 LSST vIL'T LTTT €68 0L9 SOOIAIOS [NPE PUE AJUNUIIO))
— — — — — — — — UOT)BAOURI PUR SJURoA0IdWT sonjI[IoR,
0ST'6 898°8 01T'8 SL8'8 1T¥'8 L6T'8 vOI°L Sov'9 uonepodsuen idng
— — — — ¢ — — — senror] Jo uoneradpy
8€091 67671 L9Y91 LTE YT €191 r88°Y1 LO8TI 890°81 soo1ates poddng
SE09L 8LOYL 680°7L SLYYS 11578 918°LE 1€V 7€ T1L°LE uononnsuy
— 4! ¥S [44 01 01 — 0 UOnBNSTUIUPY
suonnqinuoo pue syueid Sunerado
— — — — — — — — Q2P WLR)-BUO] UO JSAIANU]
6L 68 1394 IvL 09 — 88 9¢Cl SOOIAIOS J[NPE PUE AJUNUWIO))
— — — — — — — — UOT)BAOURI PUR SJURoA0IdWT sonjI[IoR,
— — 8 — L €1 — ¥ uonepodsuen [idng
9rL 99¥ 9¢¢ 19 0L 9 69 19 sonioey jo uonerodo
988°¢ LTV 8TS°€ LOOY 965°¢ IvL'e €9L°¢ T66°1 soo1ates poddng
80¢ 81T — 69 0¢ — 0t — uononnsuy
— — — — § — — — — UONRNSTUTUPY
SO0TATOS 10] Sa8IRYD)
:SOMIANIOR [RJUSUILIDAOL)
SINUIAIY WeISoI1g
007 €00¢ r00¢ £00¢ 9200¢ L00¢ 800¢ 6002 uoneILISSe[)
T3 X [RISL]
(peypneun)

(spuesnot ur passaidxa syunotwe)
(3ununoooe Jo SIseq [BrLIovR)

SIBQ X TROST] WBIH IS8T
1988V JON UI sauer)
RINOSSI ‘ALID SVSNV 40 LOTYLSIA TOOHDS THL



c8

17 $_(900%0)  $_ STL6 $_(ogr'e) $_(618°0) $_(19¢°19)  $_(066TH)  $_(ebve19 §
(09¢) 6LT 89T (68¢) 670°1 16S°1 (cop) (¥06)

18¢ $ (S8TVYD $ LSH6 $ (v0'e) $ (8¥8°9) $ Q11°¢9) ¢ 8sTy) § (6er09)  $
€9L°THT $_ LTOT1T  $_0/8°1TT  $ &mmmm $_ISCIYT  $_ IKEIYT  $_ 16€TULT  $_ 019767  §
8+ (€90 (6¥D ¥00°1 ¥00°1 (ZvL) (L66)

(8¥0) (€90 (6vD) — ¥00°1 ¥00°1 0sL) 000D

— — — 8 €

110°€4T 6T11T 611°72¢ 61€°6¢€T LLEOVT LLEOVT €E€1°ELT 909°86T
8T 9T 6T — #00°'1) #00°'1) 0SL 000°T

— — — — — — 61¢°LD) 611°1

€L6

969°¢1 8L6°01 €19°L 609°6 LYL6 LYL6 98t 01 00SY
Al 9LET €81 0€L°1 0781 0781 1S0°1 178
980°9t or8°or Iy Ty €65°€S 90I°LY 90I°LY TEL°68 TLIOL
LEV'E §79°¢ 979°¢ 66°¢ 96€9 96€9 S0 60T
v76°T ¥97°T 9817 8657 SE6°l SE6°l 0017 009°¢
796°6T LLO'ST 187°9C S66°LT L8I1°8T L8I1°8T 1S0°€T 081°07
9LT6H1 $ S68°GTI  $ OVT8EL  $ S88GEl  $ 0€TOVI  $ 0€TOVI  $ 9ST6ST  § SOLTST $

(L TvD  $_(€€06eD $_CHITID  $_C(obi b $_(00TL4D  $_(8¥6708) $_(TRECIO) $_(T66°88D) $
1D eaS LIS (68¢) ST LYS 6€€ €6
0e9'tvD)  § (LLs'seD $ (@o9Tia) ¢ (09€trD) § (STTivd § (S6v'eoe) ¢ (TLsie) ¢ (Sv0'680) $

Juowroaod Arewnid (8107,
sanianoe adA-sseursng
SOTIIATIOR [EJUSUIUIOAOL)

$)9SSY JON ul dduey)

Juowroaod Arewnid (8107,
sanianoe adA-sseursnq [e10],
SIOJSUeI],
S3UTUIES JUOUISOAT]
:sananoe odK)-ssoursng
SOTIIATIOR [RJUSUIUISA0ST [B)O],
SIOJSUeI],
W) ATeUIpIORNX
jasse [e1deo Jo o[es uo ured ‘weyl [eroadg
SBUTIIES JUSUISOAT]
surerdord onroads 0}
P2)OLIISAI 10U SJUSTIR[ITIUS PUR SIULILD)
B[OULIOJ OTSBQ-PTE 911G
SUOTINQLIUOO [EIUSUNIIdA0T AUnoy)
SONUAADI [BO0] IO
x®) safeg D) doig
soxe) Aradoig
:SOTTATIOR [BJUSTUUIOAOL)
$)ISSY JON
Ul sasuey)) JIYJQ PUE SINUIAIY [RIIUID)

asuadxe jou yuswonod Arewid [wo],
sanianoe adA-sseursng

SONIATJOR [BIUSUIIIOACL)
anuasar/(asuadxa) 19N

[71¢T] $_LyL6I1  $_1T89¢l  $_6v0€Tl  $_8TFITI  $__TE0']9 $_ €19 $_ 88099 ¢  sonuosdrwerdold eyuewionod Arewid [e10],
¥$9°9 6189 EvLS LO1'E orl i7all 8TL L8T sonuoaal werdold sanianor ad-ssawsnq 0],
7599 6189 EvL'S L61°E orl 0rT1 8CL L8T SOOIAIOS 0] SIBIBY)
:sanyanoe odA)-ssoursng
2007 €007 1 1]114 £002 9002 L00T 8002 6002 uoneoyIsse| )y
Jed X [edsI
(panpneun)

(spuesnot ur passaidxa syunotwe)
(3ununoooe Jo SIseq [BrLIovR)
SIBQ X TROST] WBIH IS8T
1988V JON UI sauer)
RINOSSI ‘ALID SVSNV 40 LOTYLSIA TOOHDS THL



98

[LT66T $_0/9/€7 $_ 8607477 $_ T6E061 $_0TZETCT $_0TSTEL § _T8LTUL $_906€8  § SpUNJ [BJUSUILIDAOS ISUJO [[B [BI0],
€€l o€l L€1 [al 6€1 8yl 171 YTl SpunNy JUSUBWLIOJ
180°61 189°0C 861°97 986°87 197°9C 9eH°TT O11°LI 969 spuny syoaloxd [ende)
€18°01 GLI'S 1¥8°8 €€t 91 (¢6¢) Ly TLE 1D spunj anusadl [eroadg
:pareusdIsopun
—_— —_— —_— —_— —_— ._nmN"m —_— —_— mﬂ:&Sm ﬁ@umﬁomﬁ S)asse TBMQMQ
— — 900°¢ SETl 0161 178°1 Gesl 88’1 uoddns avey-H/ed-4
0L6%61 00161 [SY61 w6l 876°7T 81€°7T Y1812 8€I°1T $a0Uasqe pajesuadwo)
07€°9T 101°2T 120°8T — — — — — SO0 UOTSUDJ
— — — — — — — 009°C1 20108 1D
¥86°7T LL80T 6TV 9cecl LY6%6 106°8 800°L ¥8L°T ue[d A3o[ouyoa],
685°€8 €70°L LY1°9 875T 0zTI'1 — — — Surpury poted uonIsuel],
€97°8 U8 €¥SCT 9LV SI LTV SLTST 8866 66711 SOUBUSIUIRWL SUIP[MQ ULI)-FUO"|
:parBuBIsa(]

Hﬂ ﬁ@ﬁOQ@H ?@@E@mQED
7€9°1 8LT°1 900°1 8117 €EI1°l €€l 8¢ 6€T spuny JolewuoN
vL6%S 001°01 18%°C T6L°S YTy 87T 18€°Y ¥S0°ST spuny syoaloxd [ende)
71696 0LSEIT 8LT°L6 LTTYS Y8V 1L £60°8S 1L1°09 896°11 Spury 90IAISS 1q3(]

—_— —_— —_— —_— —_— —_— —_— —_— m.@ﬁﬁ AMUIAII Tﬂomgm H@ﬁﬁo
— LST°T L6€°T — — — — — spunj 1anoe jueIn)
— $ — $ — $  8LOT $ — $ — $ — $ — $ Spury ,S1oUoea ],
@@E@mmm
m.@ﬁﬁ ﬁmuﬁmaam\wow H@ﬁﬁo :<
Y9€°67 Y018 1€€°9Y LETOY 189°¢9 ¢ 8879 $§ LI&TF $§ 96TLY $ puny [e10Us3 [B10],
000°6T Y9L°]Y GL6'SY €LYy ¥€0°GS 616°LS €65°CE 10L°LE pereusisopu)
— — — — — — — 000°S AKoua3unuo)) JoJ 9AI9SIY
— — — — 96°6 Y6€T 170 WLT Aianoe Juein
:parBuBIsa(]
”.boa@moED
YoEY $ Oovr'T $  9s¢ $  Per'l $ 10L $ 9T 0§ TS $ €581 $ PAATISNY
ﬁﬁsm Twh@ﬁ@@
2002 €002 $002 $002 9002 L00T 8002 6002 uoneIyISsE)

¢€9qe L

I3 § [eISL]

(panpneun)
(spuesnotpy ur pessaidxa syunoury)
(3ununoooe Jo SIseq B0 PAIPOIA)
SIeQ X [BosI] WS Ise]
Spun,j [BIUSWIUISAOL) JO saoue[Ry puUn,]
TINOSSIN ‘ALID SVSNVY A0 LOTILSIA TOOHDS THL



L8

£€6°L9¢ PSLECE 820°09¢€ 008°69¢ POT1LE 869°LLE L6L°08E 600°09¢€ sornjipuadxa [ejo,
€ELTT S€0°01 YST'L 6CE°L LOV‘9 8ThC ISev PrTe 1so103U]
L1T°0T 0T0°LT or1eI SH0°0T 08€°1C 001°CC 0€1°CT Sr6°6 Tedroutrg

901A10S 190(J
LTE9E £rr6 6168C 20€°01 8LET 9LET 991°¢ 9EL'LT SUOIBAOUDI PUE SIUSUIDAOIAWT SONI[I0R ]
L6EY 161°¢ 8C9°¢ 6ve’S S€T9 6€1°9 8LSTIT £66°8 SOOIAIOS JJIPE PUE AJTUNTIWO)
109°1¢ 4384 6S6°1C AN Y4 S86°€T €€1°CT €0L°81 11T°LT uonenodsuen [idng
IS¢ PSOtE IPEPe €LO°CE 755°6¢€ SLE'6E €8V 1 98¢ 11 sonI[IoR] Jo uonerdp
£10°99 9€9°69 69 69S°CL SL6VS 11EYL 61T L P86°CL $9d1a308 110ddng
810°¢ST 7$8°091 TE8LST P 991 IST¥91 TLY'8LI 9ST°9LT LOV 091 uononnsuy
989°CC 105°6C £€6°TT 99$°CC 180°¢€C YOE°LT 110v¢ £v9°¢T uonensIunupy

sdmyrpuadx |

€TETPE coTITE 8C6°16¢€ €L ESE €679 18T°¢¢e £68°EhE e191¢€ SenuoAdl [B10],
90% 101 LS LT LE LL 14 €l uonng,
S8SEr S69°Er 6¥L69 €LIT9 TL0T9 9988t 66911 L6L'8Y [elopaq
L0V 9T 068tC 626°CT 6LS°€T L¥p T 8STEl 9L1CI 66601 918)s _YI0
$96°CE 916°1¢ 10€°0€ 9€8°0¢ S81°0€ - - - R EIEA
980°9t or8‘or ¥y £66°€S 901°LY 68296 EL68 (IANA B[NULIOY JISBQ-prIE 9]elS
LEV'E §T9°c 979°¢ 6v6°€ LSE9 XA ST0Y 60Tt SUONNQLIUOD [EJUSTUUISA0T AJUno)
89¢°1¢€ LSP'ST PLIOT 1€9°¢1 1L8°%1 PTE0T LTS ST €811 SenuoAdl [Bd0] Jo[10)
796°6T LLOST 182°9¢ S66°LT L81°8C L60°6T 150°¢€C 081°0C xe] sofeg O doid
801°CE1 $  v99°¢Tl $  0LEOPI $ €SOt $  1€6'LPI $  Iv6LPI $  6L9LSIT $  9z66Pl $ soxe) Apadoi

SANUIAN]

2002 €00T r00T 00T 900 L00T 800 600

183 X [edSL

(ponpneun)
(spuesnoyj u1 pessaidxa sjunowry)
(Sununoooe Jo sIseq [BNI99R PAIPOIN)
SIeo & [BOSL] JYSIy 158]
oney 991A19G 199(] PUB ‘SPUN,] [BIUSWILLISAOL) JO SO0UB[RY pun,| Ul soSuey))
TINOSSIA ‘ALLD SVSNVY 40 LOIILSIA TOOHDS HHL
LA CLND



%8¢

%l'¢

88

%S'€ %8S %19 %Z'9 %Z'9 %8'€
(yog82) ¢ (19L°¢¢) $ (eppsn) $ (9¢6°91) $ (P9681) ¢ (691°C2) $ (ssT7s8) $ (LSF9E)
(rST1°¢) (zLTe) (ev€°L) (60LF) (esz01) 81T 6V9°1 0TH'L
059 09°1 702 — {TE — 10t°1 10t°1
— — — — r6T°€ r6T°€ 9Z8°l
— — — — LTST LTST —
(1L¥°€L) — (2oTv1T) — — — (LL6°ET)
191°¢ — LT6°8 — — — —
00°69 — 0S€701 — — —
(rL8°c61) (165°2€0) (6££207) (61L°€07) (81+°202) (88C°611) (88C°611) (606°LST)
OrE 161 6S8°LTT 6LLLET 010°661 LEST61T SILPPI SILPPI 6L0°9LT
(012°52) (687°C€) (001°8) (Lzzen) (11L°8) (L1¥°T0) (+06°9¢) (LL3°¢Y)
2002 €002 002 $002 9002 L00Z 8002 6002

183 X [edSL

(ponpneun)

(spuesnoyj u1 pessaidxa sjunowry)
(Sununoooe Jo sIseq [BNI99R PAIPOIN)

SIeo & [BOSL] JYSIy 158]

oney 991A19G 199(] PUB ‘SPUN,] [BIUSWILLISAOL) JO SO0UB[RY pun,| Ul soSuey))
TINOSSIA ‘ALLD SVSNVY 40 LOIILSIA TOOHDS HHL

$

sonjrpuadxo
Trendeouou Jo o5ejued1od © sB 9014198 1qo(]

sooue[Rq PUNJ UL 95URYD JON

(sosn) s90In0S FuTOUBULJ IOTIO [BIO],
sjosse [e3ideo Jo sofeg
sjosse snjdins - spagooid pazijesrun
soseo] [ende)
199p papunjol 0} JuowAeJ
Spuoq Uo Wnwald
ponsst spuoq Surpunjoy
N0 SIQJSURI],
Ul SIoJSUBI],
(sesn) s90In0s Furouruly 19YI0)

m@uzﬁﬁﬁogxo Jopun SonusAal JO SS90X



%

68

“Apradoid feuosiod

ur papnjout st jusdibs  sroimoejnuew pue  sjueysow (Aedord jeuosiad 1o [ear royne ur papnjout st Alrodord Aun pue peosfier passosse A[edoT  (7)
"anfeA Tenjoe Jo o4e€° ¢ ¢ e passasse st A11odoxd [euosIog "047¢ 18 [EIISWIOD J0 066 T 18 [ENUSPISAT ‘05T T e 2Inotidy emoe Jo aSejusoiod e sk anjea passosse SUMUSIsse Uoym so11050)e0

201 Jo oo 0} Arodoid [eal SOIISSEd SANIE)S PASIAY HINOSSTA U1 JO STT°LET UON0ag ‘Tusuneda(] JUSWSSOsSy AJUNoD) UOSYor[ o) AQ Opeur a1om sUOTen]eA passossy :00mog (1)
LT 1TrTTsP61°6 0$6498°0SH°T LLS69EVLYT 08¥°LOLYTS PreTST0TL O 0LV LST°9T9°T 6661
9T 060°6¥S$°SEC°6 S6TE69°CIST PESLO6'8ENT 186°LYS 6L8 9T 1¥9°968°9 PIESHIOE9T 000T
9T SIF'EI8€90°01 OrLL8ITENT 6T8°TOV EE9T €9T°ETL'LLS 98¢ 01V TEY'L €8S VLEESLT 100T
9T SPTY66°8PL6 80E°0TY 66T SOEPSTY6ET 086700°86L 088°6ELVSE'L 8TECIYIELT 00T
Y4 610°ST6°'81€°01 6L1°697°999°C P06 T8Y 61T TSP PSLTEL STI TP ETE'S LTLYISTEST £00T
9T PI8°L80°6VE D] 60Z°T01°0S9°T OLLST9'9TIT 9£0°891°SOL PrOTLY TET'S ELTVEIVPE'T 00T
¥T SLEDSOBSLTT £96°819°CL8T I¥P 0€9°7€0°T OTLSLYLLY PE6°610°9TL°6 LETEPT'861T €00T
1c SP8'SHTTI9ET 696°L99°C88°T T69°819°C20°C 018°8ET VLY €ST°LTO6E9TT 6S1°6TS11Z°T 900T
Y4 T09PTY 696°T1 9Z1°¢80°00Z°€ 8LYTLT'O9TTT L19910°THL ECSTSTEPLOT 60$°890°8SHT L00T
¥4 LO9'LTOCESTT 988°L66VT6°T £L1°C0P°066'T Pr0TOP €99 PEPTTOT8'6 Tr8°C6S°19Z°T 800T
nfea [enpy nfea [enpy aneA nfea [enpy aneA nfea [enpy aneA Jeak LA X,
PIsSIsse [e)0) ™oL (7) &y19doad feuosiag (7) &19doad [eay

Jo oney

sIqe L

(1) Auadoid o[qexe], Jo SnjeA [ENOY PIjeNsy pue PIssIssy
RINOSSIA ‘ALLD SVSNVY A0 LOTUISIA TOOH)DS AH.L

SI1e0 { Jepuo[e)) UoJ, 15e]



06

“ea1)) 1e8ng Jo A oy

pue souepuadepur Jo A0 9Y) UT POJBOO] $931S [00Tds JO1IST( PojeuTwe 18y} a8ueyo Aepunog B pasoidde 10104 007 ‘0 IoquesoN uQ ()
‘seyer xe) Apedoad ur eSueyo o) Jo 101BOTPUT UR sB AJUo pajuasald ST (830} oy, “sIoAedxe) [BNPIATPUT JO USPING XB) [BNIOR o))

Juesaidar jou soop T30 oY) ‘Afuenbesuo)) “sonIo 1ot0 de[1940 Ing TINOSSTIA] ‘A1) SBSUBY UT POUTBIUOO AT[OUM JOU 2IB SILIBPUNOQ § J0IISIT oy (7)

‘senyuoyIne Sutxe) Aq ATI02IIp PIULITJUOD SB UOTJen|es passesse 01§ 1od sojerxe]:00omog (1)
(449 S6'v 050 80°1 €00 9¢°0 €0°0 SLO el 000T
(449 S6'v 050 80°1 €00 9¢°0 €0°0 SLO el 100T
1449 S6'v 050 60T €00 LSO €0°0 SLO el 00T
w6 S6'v 050 60T €00 LSO €0°0 SLO el €00T
or'6 S6'v 610 LOT o LSO €0°0 SLO 6S1¢ET 00T
or'6 S6'v 610 LOT o LSO €0°0 SLO 961¢€1 §00T
15°6 S6'v Lv'0 LOT o LSO €0°0 690 [SYUNE 900T
876 S6'v Lv'0 LOT o LSO €0°0 99°0 [SYUNE L00T
6£°6 S6'v Y0 LOT 120 LSO €0°0 §9°0 [43% ! 800T
IL°L S6'v Lv'0 - $ 1T0 $ LSO $ €00 - SLOV'L 600¢
(@ e PLISI( Kreaqry [GREER) $38a[[0D) £unoy)y LINOSSITA (¢) aauapuadapuy K1)y sesuey[ papud

[ooy2s J1qn LINOSSIJA] aegng Ayunwuio)y uosydep Jo aeyg Jo A Jo A aeak [easiy
‘A)10) sesued[ Jo &) uejjodonayy

99qeL

SIBD X TBOSL] US], JSe]
sjuownoAon) Sudderoa) pue 1oomq—(1) sapey xB ], Adodoi]
TINOSSTIN ‘ALID SYSNVM A0 LOTALSIA TOOHDS AHL



16

‘sypodar Juonmaeda(] uonod[[0) “9duRUL] JO UOISIAL(] “AJUNO)) UOSYOR[ :90IN0OY

6661 ‘T€ Rqudd( pue §00T ‘1€ JqUd( papud Jedak epudfed uo paseq (1)
C6TE69°CTS TS sem 000T PUB 988°L66HT6 TS Sem §0(T IO onfea Passasse [ej0], 120N

%t 91 TP SOP V6T %T6 €TOTITC9T  §
¥ 01 8TILLICT SUOT)EOIUNUITIO)) [1og wIdIsomynog
60 8 +20°98L°¢C1 Jommoenue Auedwo)) [021§ [SD
4! L 0r1°909°L1 ooueUr,] uonesodio)) ypax) NI
€1 ¢ 06$°96S°LT o1e)sH [B9Y oSy, “JUNH H SopIey)
166°080°81 <0 01 699°6L6°€1 Annn 0)) uoru) WIdynog
00 <0 6 TrT619°61 SO0IAIOG ASOJOUL[O? [, UOT)BULIOJU] ouy ‘swsAS [ S d
4! 9 r0°$69°9T <0 8 LOT6IL ST SN pue yoIeosoy [eIMNOLISY Jodeg
<0 6 90 L 000°8¥8°91 o1e)sH [B9Y pAId puelD dSq
00 90 9 ¥8L°0ST°LT oIS [eoy ouf “A)[eay AU [IONUOM ],
L1 ¥ 80 ¢ 69L°6L0°ET JodedsmoN Teyg A1) sesuey
0T € 00 TLS 1Y 60 4 996°€€L°6T SUOTIBOTUNTIIIO.) L®LV
I'1 €LLICSETE 01 € ¢S1'9¢T°0¢ o1e)sH [B9Y K)[eay SPOOMYSIH 29 S[OYOIN D [
a3 I 0S6°8€L°0F vl 4 T 1L8°6E Annn WSIT pue Jomod A1) sesuey
%L'T [4 0LL 96¥°8¢ %€'T I 6v0°€S899  § [910H/[1e19Y /91815 [y IomMod umolr) 79 yIew[ey
IN[BA PISSISSE  yuvy (1)onea INIBA PISSISSE  uvy (1)onea ssoursng s.Rfedxe g,
[e101 Jo PIsSSISSy %101 jo PIssIssy JoodAy,
AU AU
0002 800¢
600T “0¢€ ounf

L3lqeL

soAedxe] KQrodoid Tedourig

RINOSSIA ‘ALID SVSNV 40 LOTILSIA TOOHDS AHL



6

‘spodor jusugreda(] uonoss[[o) ‘@ourUL] JO UOISIAI(] ‘AUNoO)) UosIdR[ :00In0S (§)

“JBOA AAS] XB] JUSLING ST} JO PUS S} 18 SuIpueIsino soxe] juenbur[op [[e pue AJunood oy Aq poy saxe) paysejoxd sopnppu] ()
'sox®] Juonburjop Jo uonoo[od sopnjoul 95ejuedIsd  (¢)
*AJUNOY) UOSOB[ Aq POUTEDT §90] UOTIO9[[00 PUB JUSTUSSOSSE JO JOU ‘SOXEB) SIOIMORINUBU pue sjueyolow juswooe]dor pue ‘Ajiedoid Jeuosiod ‘oyeiso [eos sopnpou  (7)
'SISeq JeOA-[ROSIJ B UO pajiodal oJe SUONOS[[0D “SISkq JeOA-IBPUS[EO B UO POIAY]
oIe soxel o[IYA\ “pun s1oofol [ende) pue ‘pung sioyoes], ‘pung [eiouss) sopnjour ojqe], (1)
%L LOO'STT'8 %8566 8TIvET 1T T60°69S°L %¢€'¢6 9€0°G9S°€TT £70°069°121 6661
%9 £€S8E0°L %9001 618°8rEETI Yr6YT8L %EY6 SLYETSSTT 80179571 0002
%S 9TT'SH9 %t €01 SYOBPLTIET 986°008°01 %676 6S9°LY6°0TT $88°T6£°LT1 100z
%L LIS TT6'8 %L 101 708°609°SZ1 STOLYO'TT %8T6 681°T9S Y11 9SL 8 ETT 200z
%S 69L°680°L %C'901 061°SST0F1 6V8YLTST %976 179°086 ¥Z1 0T#°0L0TET £00T
%9 £09°916°L %P 101 6L8°8SS€EET 175 058°8 %L¥6 8€€80L YT T€TTrLIET Y002
%L 089°S8L°6 %¢' 101 9$T1TLSP1 80T ¥¥9°11 %C'¢6 8F1°LLOYEL 878°798°¢c1 S00T
%L 0¥8°S6L°6 %C'001 S06°9ES b1 9ZE'810°01 %C'¢6 6LS 8IS TEL 61r PIE TP 9002
%6 LT8YILYL %596 YESSLEST SELSTT6 %806 66LTEITHT 9TYLYE6ST L00T
%6 9¥L°8T8T1 $_%0°66 0LST6SLYT  §_ THIOIETT $_%r'16 826°08T°9€1  §_ vL9'6OT6FT  § 8007
KAJ[ JUR.LIND () soxey (©) La9[ SUONIIN[0 SUONIIN[0 P3393[109 £Ad SUONIIN[0 (D) K91 JTeak £A9] xR,
Jo Iseyuddaad yusnburpp JUDLIND JO Xe) [ejo, xe) Jo IseyuadIg XE) JUA.LINY) XE) JUA.LINY)
© St $oXE) surpue)syng JuId € se juanburpq
yusnburpp SUOI)IIN[0D
SurpuejsinQ [LEUAR

83qeL

SIeo X Iepus[e)) US], IS8T
(1) suonoa[[o)) pue solAe | xe], Aedo1]
TINOSSTIN ‘ALID SYSNVM A0 LOTALSIA TOOHDS AHL



THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Outstanding Debt by Type
Governmental Activities

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Total
Fiscal year ended Leasehold Capital Primary
June 30 Revenue Bonds Leases Government
2009 $ 44,335,000 — 44,335,000
2008 67,185,000 495,408 67,680,408
2007 89,315,000 967,387 90,282,387
2006 110,855,000 — 110,855,000
2005 132,235,000 — 132,235,000
2004 152,280,000 — 152,280,000
2003 171,560,000 — 171,560,000
2002 188,570,000 — 188,570,000
2001 197,820,747 — 197,820,747
2000 229,495,000 — 229,495,000
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
Computation of Overlapping Debt
June 30, 2009

Table 10

General
obligation Percentage Amount
bonds applicable applicable
Jurisdiction outstanding (2) to District (1) to District
City of Kansas City, Missouri $ 293,280,000 0.4455 $ 130,656,240

(1) Source: Jackson County, Division of Finance, Collection Department reports KCMSD

is composed of three cities within its boundaries, of which the City of Kansas City, Missouri is 93%.

(2) Source: City of Kansas City, Missouri Tax Administration Department.

94



Table 11
THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Computation of Legal Debt Margin
June 30, 2009

Total assessed value, tax levy year 2008 (1) $ 3,200,085,126
Legal debt margin—15% of assessed value (2) 480,012,769

(1) See Table 6.

(2) The bonded indebtedness of the District is limited by Section 26(b) of the Missouri Constitution,
Article VI, to 15% of the value of the taxable tangible property as shown by the last completed
assessment for state and county purposes. The District had no outstanding general bonded debt
at June 30, 2009.

Note: The District has not had outstanding general bonded debt for the last ten years. Therefore, the debt limit amount,

total net debt applicable to the limit, legal debt margin amount and the ratio of either the legal debt
margin to the debt limit or total debt applicable to the debt limit are not applicable.
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Table 12
THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Demographic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

September Ratio of Regular school Ratio of
Fiscal year ended District school membership year average attendance to
June 30 population membership to population daily attendance membership
2009 $ 239,451 17,892 7 % 16,051 89.7
2008 239,451 22,429 9 19,381 86.4
2007 239,451 24,358 10 21,133 86.8
2006 239,451 25,750 11 22,633 88.0
2005 239,451 27,094 11 23,766 87.7
2004 239,451 26,939 11 24,307 90.2
2003 239,451 26,886 11 24,797 923
2002 239,451 27,973 12 24,917 89.0
2001 239,451 29,157 12 25,902 88.8
2000 282,066 31,213 11 27,690 88.7

Source:  Estimated District population is based on the 1991 census for 1999 through 2001 provided by the City Development
Department; the City Planning Division provided the estimates for years from 2001 and after from the 2001 census
data.

Note: Average daily attendance includes summer school attendance. Ratio of attendance to membership reflects average daily attendance of regular
school year to September school membership.
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Table 13
THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Property Value and Construction Costs

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Estimated
actual Nonresidential Residential
Fiscal year ended property construction construction
June 30 value (1) (in millions) (in millions)
2009 $ 11,835,027,607 32.8 539
2008 12,969,424,032 472 63.9
2007 11,639,627,153 323 61.6
2006 11,758,650,375 13.2 36.3
2005 10,349,087,814 28.6 143
2004 10,518,925,019 151.9 85.0
2003 9,748,994,245 191.2 48.0
2002 10,065,813,415 283 .4 66.6
2001 9,535,549,090 2125 40.7
2000 9,194,522 421 62.4 18.0

(1)  See Table 6.

Source: Assessed valuations were made by the Jackson County Assessment Department. Estimated actual
property values were calculated using percentages set forth in Section 137.115 of the Missouri Revised Statutes.
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Table 14
THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI

Per-Pupil Costs

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Current
Average expenditures
Fiscal year ended daily Eligible per eligible

June 30 attendance pupils pupil (1)
2009 16,051 18,186 § 16,570
2008 19,381 22,107 14,629
2007 23,087 24,144 13,275
2006 24,569 25,725 12,193
2005 25,449 26,605 11,590
2004 25,813 27,012 10,906
2003 25,784 26,771 10,907
2002 25,663 26,429 10,483
2001 26,915 27,929 9,301
2000 28,707 29,725 8,376

(1)  Current expenditures per eligible pupil as reported to the State of Missouri DESE. Using the
General, Teachers’, Grant Activity, and Child Nutrition funds total instructions and support
services expenditures less food service revenues.
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